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September 15, 2010

Director Justina F. Callangan

Corporation Finance Department

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Building, EDSA

Greenhills, Mandaluyong City

Ms. Janet A. Encarnacion

Head, Disclosure Department ‘

THE PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE, INC
3" Floor, Philippine Stock Exchange Plaza

Ayala Avenue, Makati City

Gentlemen:

We are filing the attached Amended SEC Form 17-A and Audited Annual Financial
Statements {“AAFS”) of Pepsi Cola Products Philippines, Inc. as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2010, Please be advised that the SEC Form 17-A and AATS were first
approved and authorized for issuance by the Company’s Board of Directors on
September 9, 2010 and filed with your office on the same date, September 9. 2010. We
amended the SEC Form 17-A and AAFS to include the disclosure on the recent dividend
declaration which was approved by the Board of Directors o September 9, 2010. The
- approved dividend declaration is disclosed in Note 26 to the Amended AAFS. The
Amended AAFS were approved and authonzed for issuance by the Company’s Board of
Dlrectors on September 15, 2010, '

Kind regards.

Very truly yours,

/%@4&94

Partha Chakrabarti
EVP and Chief Operating Officer /
Cotporate Information Officer
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 17-A
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES
For the fiscal year ended 30 June 2010
SEC Identificatidn Nurnber 0000160968 3. BIR Tax Identification No. 000-168-541
Exact name of issuer as speci'ﬁed in its charter; PEPSI-GOLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

Province, Country or other jurisdiction of - 6. Industry Classification Code:
incorporation or organization: Philippines’ - {8EC Use Only)

Address of ‘principa‘l offica: Km. 29 National Road. Tunasan, Muntinlupa City Postal Code: 1773

Issuer's telephone number, including area code: (632) 850-7901 to 20

Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report: not applicable
Securities registered pursuant to Sections & and 12 of the SRG, or Sec. 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Class MNumber of Shares of Common Stock
: o Qutstanding and Amount of Debt Qutstanding
~ asofJdune 30, 2008
Common Shares of Stock ‘ 3,693,772,279

Are any or all of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange"
Yes[x] No[ ]

If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the-classes of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange - Common Shares of Stock

Check whether the issue;

(@) has filed alf reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1 thereunder
or Section 11 of the R8A and RSA Rule 11(2)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of The
Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12} months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to file such reports); :
Yes [x] No [ 1

{b} The Registrant has been subject to guch filing requirements for the past ninety (80) days.
Yes [x] Nel ]



13. State the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiiates of the registrant. The
aggragate market value shall be computed by referance to the price at which the stock was sold, or
the average bid and asked prices of such stock, as of a specified date within sixty (60) days prior to

- the date of filing. If a determination as to whether a particular person or entity is an affiliate cannot be
made without involving unreasonable effort and expense, the aggregate market value of the common

“stock held by non-affiliates may be calculated on the basis of assumptions reasonable under the
circumstances, provided the assumptions are set forth in this Form. ‘

Aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant 23,752 miliion as
of August 31, 2010,

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE |
14. The following documents are incorporated in this report:

(a) 2010 Audifed Financial Statements attached as Exhibit 1 heraof; and
{0 Staternent of Management Responsibility attached as Exhibit Il hereof.



PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

{1) Business Development

a

Form and Date of Organization

The Company was registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Cemmieeien on March 8§,
1989, primarily to engage in manufacturing, sales and distribution of carbonated soft-drinks and non-
carbonated beverages to retail, wholesale, restaurants and bar trades. The registered office address
and principal piace of business of the Company is Km. 29, National Road, Tunasan, Muntinlupa City.
Bankruptcy, Reee'iverehip or Similar Proceedings

The Company and its associate are not involved in any bankruptcy, receivership or similar

: proceedinge‘

(2}

Material Reclassification, Merger, Consolidation or F’urchese or Sale of a Significant Amount of
Aeeete {not ordinary) over the past three years

The Company and itz associate have not made any material reclassifications nor entered into a
merger, consolidation or purchase or sale of significant amount of assets (not erdmery) in the past
three years. :

Business of Issue

Principal products -

The Company is a licensed bottler of PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton beverages in the Philippines. It
manufactures a range of carbonated soft drinks and non-carbonated beverages that includes well-

known brands Pepsi-Cola, 7Up, Meuntem Daw, Mirinda, Geterade Tropicana/Twister, Lipton, Sting
and Propel,

Net Sales 2010 5000 2008

| Carbonated soft drinks B 11,469 & 10,594 210,405
Nen-carbonated beverages 4,660 3,638 2876
| Total ‘ £ 16,129 B 14,232 R 12 981
Segment result* - 2010 2008 - 2008
| Carbonated soft drinks B2 084 23118 P 3,292
Non-carbonated beverages 1,217 1,071 815
Total : 24211 #4189 24107

*  Segment result is the difference between net sales and sagment expensas. Segment expanses are allocated basad on
the percantage of each reportable segment's net sales over the total net sales.

Foreign sales

Foreign sales repreeent 0.28%. 0.26%, and 0.40% of total net sales in 2010, 2009 and 2008
raspectively.



¢ Distribution methods of the products

The Company’s sales volumes depend on the reach of its distribution network. It increases the reach
of distribution system by adding routes and increasing penetration by adding outlets on axisting
routes that c:urrently' do not stock its products. It relies on a number of channeis to reach ratail
cutlets, including darect sales, distributars and wholesalers

The hackbone of“the distribution system is what is referred to as “Entrepreneurial Distribution
System,” which consists of independent contractors who service one or more salas “routes,” usually
by truck, selling directly to retail outlets and collecting empty returnable bottles (RGBs)..

It also employs its own sales force, which principally sells to what js referred to as the “modern trade”
channel, consisting largely of supermarkets and restaurant and convenience store chains. Most of
these sales are credit salas that are fulfillad by third party distributors. In addition, it sells products fo
third party wholesalers and distributors, which sell them o retail cutlets. B

An important aspect of the distribution system is the infrastructure-intensive process of selling and
delivering RGB products to many thousands of small retailers, including sari-sari stores and
carinderias. The efforts to increase the reach of our distribttion network require significant
investments in distribution infrastructure such as . additional trucks, refrigeration equipment,
warehouse space and a larger “float” of glass bottles and plastic shells, as well as higher costa for
additional sales and distribution staff.

d. Publicly—announced new product
The Company has na publicly-announced new products that are in the planning or prototype stage.
‘e. Competition |

The beverage market in the Fhilippines is highly competitive. Competition i primarily through
advartising and marketing programs that create brand awareness, price and price promotions, new
product development, distribution and availability, packaging and customar goodwill.

Competitors in the carbonated soft drinks (CSD) market are The Coca-Cola Company, Asiawide
Refreshments Corporation, and Asia Brewery incorporated. The substantial investment in multiple
plants, distribution infrastructure and systems and the float of RGBs and plastic shells required to
operate a nationwide beverage business using RGBs represent a significant barrler to potential
campeatifors in widening their reach.

The market for non-carbonated beverages (NCB) is more fragmented. Major competitors in this
market are The Coca-Cola Company, San Miguel Corparation, Universal Robina Corporation, Zesta
Corporation, among others. In recent years, the market has been relatively fluid, with frequent
product launches and shifting consumer preferences. These frends are expected o continue.

f.  Sources and ava:lablllty of raw materials

Qver haif of total costs comprlse purchases of raw materials. Largest purchases are sugar and
beverage concentrates. The Company purchases all sugar requirements domaestically because of
import restrictions imposed by the Philippine government. It purchases beverage concentrates from
PepsiCo, Inc. (*PepsiCo”) and Pepsi Lipton International Limited ("Pepsi Lipton™) at prices that are
fixed as a percentage of the wholesale prices charged for the finished products, subject to a price
floor in W.3, dollars.



Another substantial cost is packaging. The major components of this expense are purchases of PET
pre-forms, which are converted into PET bottles at the planis, non-reusable glass boitles, aluminum
cans and closures. It also makes regular purchases of RGBs to maintain float at appropriate levels.
Rurchases of each of these materials are from suppliers based in the Philippines and in other parts of
Asia, usually under short term, fixed price contracts. ' '

Customers

The Company has a broad customer base nationwide. Its customers include supermarkets,
convenience stores, bars, sari-sar stores and carinderias. ‘

Transactions with and/or Dependence on Related Parties
Please refer to Itern 13 of this report,
Patents, trademarks, copyrights, licenses, franchises, concessions, and royalty agreements

The Company does.not own any intellectual property that is material to the business. Under the .
Exclusive Boftling Agreements, the Company s authorized to use brands and the associated
trademarks owned by PepsiCo, Inc., and, in the case of the Lipton brand and trademarks, Unilever
N.V.  Trademark licenses are registered with the Philippine Intellectual Property Office. Certificates
of Registration filed after January 1998 are effective for a period of 10 years from the registration date
unless sooner cancelled; while those filed before January 1998 are effective for 20 years from the
registration date. The table below summarfzes most of the current Certificates of Registration as well
as pending applications for Lipton lced Tea,

_____Filing Date Expiration
Pepsi Max February 7, 1994 June 23, 2020
1996 Pepsi Logo in Color - August 26, 1997 April 16, 2021
FCFPl - — Pepsi Cola Products | August 26, 2008 September 17, 2019
Philippings, Inc. and Logo . L
Pepsi Qctober 18, 2004 February 12, 2017
Mirinda January 23, 1986 May 10, 2019

Mountain Dew

~June 5, 2000

January 18, 2014

Mountain Dew Logo

June 5, 2000

Octobear 30, 2014

Diet 7Up Logo in Color

September 22, 2003

August 28_2015

7Up

February 26, 2007

November 5, 2017

Gatorade

November 27, 1982

June 28, 2018

February 9, 2004

August 28, 2015

Gatorade and lightning bolt design
Propel o

August 23, 2002

January 17, 2015

Tropicana Twister

December 6, 1990

August 18, 2013

Tropicana December 14, 1982 January 14, 2020
Sting March 10, 2006 June 18, 2017
Lipton March 28, 2003 June 8, 2018
Lipton Splash design December 18, 2003 May 28, 2017

| Lipton Ice Tea Logo in Galor

November 17, 2006

Pending application

The Company produces its products under licenses from PepsiCo and
upon them to provide concentrates and access to new products. Thus, if the Exclusive Bottling
Agreerments are suspended, terminated or not renewed for any reason, it would have a material

adverse effect on the business and financial results,

Pepsi Lipton and depands

Refer to ltem 13 of this report for details on transactions with PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton.




Govarnment approvais of principal products

As a producer of beverages for human consumption, the Company is subject to the regulation by the
Bureau of Food and Drugs (BFAD) of the Philippines, which is the policy formulation and monitoring
arm of the Department of Health of the Philippines on matters pertaining to food and the formulation
of rules, regulations, standards and minimum guidelines on the safety and quality, of food and food
products as well as the branding and labeling requirements for these products. .

It is the Company's policy to register all locally-produced products for local market distribution. Each
of the plants has a valid and cutrent License to Operate as a Food Manufacturer of Non-Alcoholic
Beverages from BFAD. These licenses are renewed annually in atcordance with applicable
regulations. Any finding and gaps found during the regulatory audit and inspection are thoroughly
discussed with BFAD inspectors and compliance commitments are re-issued. There are no pending
findings of gaps that are material or that may materially affect the operation of éach plant or all the
plants as a whola, -

The Company is also registered as a Distributor and Exporter of finished products. It has been
recognized by BFAD as a Good Manufacturing Practica Certified Plant. ‘

Effect of existing or probable governmental regulations on the business.

The Company's production facilities are subject to environmental regutation under a variety of
national and local laws and regulations, which, in particular, control the emissions of air pollutants,
water, and noise. It is regulated by two major government agencies, namely, the Department of
Environment and Natural Resources (DENR) and the Laguna Lake Development Authority (LLDA).

The Corpany is compliant with environmental laws and regulations, such as the wastewater
treatment plants as required by the Department of Environment and Natural Resources and Laguna
Lake Development Authority. ‘

While the foregoing agencies actively  monitor the Company's compliance with environmental
regulations as well as investigate complaints brought by the pubiic, it is required to police its own
compliance and prevent any incident that could expose the Company to fines, civil or even criminal
sanctions, considerable capital and other costs and expense for refurbishing or upgrading
environmental compliance system and resources, third party liability such as clearn-ups, injury to
communities and individuals, including, loss of life. -

Resaarch and development

The research and development costs amounted to R317,460, R233,293, and 177,500 in fiscal years
2010, 2008, and 2008, respectively. ;

. Costs and effects of compliance with environmental laws

Compliance with all applicable environmental laws and regulations, such as the Environmental Impact
Statement System, the Pollution Control Law, the Laguna Lake Development Authority Act of 1966,
the Clean Air Act, and the Solid Waste Management Act has not had, and in the Company's opinion,
is not expected to have a material effect on the capitat expenditures, earnings or competitive position.
Annually, it invests about 239 milion and B33 million in wastewater treatment and air pollution
abatement, respectively, in is facilities. ‘



n.

Empioyeas

As of June 30, 2010, the Company employs approximately 2,560 people, In addition, it generally
deploys between 1,500 and 1,950 casual employees working in the business at any time. It contracts
with DOLE accredited third parly manpower and services firms for the supply of casual staff, The
number of casual employees it requires varies seasonally, with generally higher numbers during peak
months of March through June. As of June 30, 2010, it had 1,936 casual employees, -

All of the permanent production employees at the bottling plants and sales offices are represented by
a union. The Company is a parly 1o 14 collective bargaining agreements, with separate agresmeants
for the salas and the non-sales forces in some cases. The collective bargaining agreements contain
economic and non-economic provisions (such as salary incréase and performance incentive, sale
commission, faundry allowance, per diemn, bereavement assistance, union leave, calamity loan, and
assistance to employees’ cooperative), which generally have a term of three years and remain
binding on the successors-in-interest of the parties, while the raprasentation aspect is valid for five
years. .

The Company betiévas that the'relationship with both unionized and non-unionized employees is
healthy. Ithas not experienced any work stoppages due to industrial disputes since 1999,

It places significant emphasis on training personnel to increase their skill levels ensure consistent
application of procedures and to instill an appreciation of corporate vahjes. It operates “Pepsi
University,” a full-time training facility consisting of four classrooms. It has adopted a compensation
policy which it believes to be competitive with industry standards in the Philippines, 3alaries and
benefits are reviewed periodically and adjusted to retain current employees and attract new
employees: Petformance is reviewed annually and employees are rewarded based on the attainment
of pre-defined objectives. ‘ .

The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering substantially all
of its regular and full time employees. The Company has a Retirement Committee that sets the
policies for the plan and has appointed two Philippine banks as trustees t0 manage the retirement
fund pursuant to the plan.  Annual cost is determined using the projected unit credit methad.

Major Risks

Sales and profitability are affected by the overall performance of the Philippine economy, the natural
seasonality of sales, the competitive environment of the beverage market in the Philippines, as weall
as changes in cost structures, among other factors. :

Sales volume are also affected by the weather, generally being higher in the hot, dry manths from
March thraugh June and lower during the watter monsoon months of July through October. in
addition, the Philippines is exposed to risk of typhoone during the monsoon period. Typhoons usualtly
result in substantially reduced sales in the affected area, and have, in the past, interrupted production
at the plants in affected areas. While these factors lead to a natural seasonality in sales,
unseasonable weather could also significantly affect sales and profitability compared to previous
comparable periods, Sales during the Christmas/New Year holiday period in late Dacember tend to
be higher as well. :

The CSD and NCB markets are bath highly competitive. The actions of competitors as well as the
Company's own continuous efforts on pricing, marketing, promotions, and new product development
affect sales. Some of the smaller competitors have lower cost bases than the Corporation and price
their products lower than ours. Thus, in addition to the cost of producing and distributing our
beverages, sales prices are greatly affected by the avaitability and price of competing brands in the
market.



All of the Company’s sales are denominated in Philippine pesos. However, same of the significant
costs, such as purchases of packaging materialg, are denominated in United States dollars. Some of
the other costs, which are incurred In Philippine pesos, can also be affected by fluctuations in the
exchange rate between the Philippine peso and United States doliars. As a result, movements in the
exchange rate between Philippine pesos and other cumencies. can have a significant effect on the
results of operations.

The business requires a significant supply of raw materials and energy. The cost and supply of these
materials could be adversely affected by changes in the world market prices on sugar, crude ofl,
aluminum, tin, PET resing, among others. Although direct purchases of fuel are relatively small as a
proportion of total costs, the Company is exposed to fluctuations in the price of oil through the
dependence on freight and delivery services. Changes in' materiale prices generally affect the
competitors as well, ' - : ‘

Margins differ between beverage products and package types and sizes. Excluding packaging,
production costs are similar across the range of carbonated beverages, but vary between non-
carbonated beverages. Packaging costs vary, with RGBs being less expensive than PET, aluminum
cans or non-returnable glass, The incremental cost of producing larger-sized serves in the same
package type is proportionately lower than the increased volume, creating opporfunities to achieve
higher margins where customers perceive valug in terms of volume. ‘ '

As a result of the factors discussed above, the margins the Company earns on the products can be
substantially different, and the margins can change in both absolute and relative terms from period to
period. While the Company attempts to adjust its product and package mix to maximize profitability,
changes in consumer demand and the competitive landscape can have a significant impact on mix
and therefore profitability.

The Company is also subject to ¢redit risk, liquidity risk and various market risks, including risks from
changes in commodity prices, interest rates and currency exchange rates (refer to Notes 4 and 23 of
the 2010 Audited Financial Statements for discussion on Financial Risk Management),

The Company is not aware of any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that
is material to the Company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation. To the Company’s
knowtedge, there are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangement, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationship of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other
persons created during the reporting period. ‘

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As a foreign-owned company, the Company is not permitted to own land in the Philippines and has no
intention to acquire real estate property. Hence, it leases the land on which the bottling plants,
warehouses and sales offices are located. ‘

The Company leases certain parcels of land where its bottling plants and warehouses are located from
third paries and Nadeco Realty Corporation for a period of one to 25 years and are renewabla for
-another one to 25 years (refer to Nate 27 of the 2010 Audited Financial Statements for further information
on the leases).

Other than the buildings, leasehold improvements, machinery and equipment, fixtures and appurtenances

- disclosed in Note 10 to the 2010 Audited Financial Statements, and the investments in shares of stocks
disclosed in Note 8 to the 2010 Audited Financial Statements, the Company does not hold significant
properties.



-Refer to Notes 7 (inventories), 9 (But't!eé and Cases), 10 (Property, Plant and Equipment), and 11 (Notes
- Payables) to the 2010 Audited Financial Statements for details on mortgage, lien or encumbrances over.
the properties of the Company and its associate.. ‘ ‘

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, the Company becomes a party to litigation in the ordinary course of its business. The -
majority of the cases in which the Company is a party are cases it files to recover debts in relation to
unpaid receivables by trade partners or in relation to cash or route shortages, private criminal
prosecutions that it brings (generally for low value offenses such as theft of product or distribution
equipment, fraud, and bouncing checks), labor cases for alleged ilegat dismissal (which. are usually
accompanied by demands for reinstatement in the Company without loss of seniority rights, and payment
of back wages), and consumer cases brought against the Company involving allegations of defective

praducts.

As a result of a promation in 1992, civil cases were filed against the Company in which thousands of
individuals claimed to hold numbered bottle crowns that entitied them to a cash prize. The Phillpping
Supreme Court has consistently held in at least 7 final and executory decisions in the last 5 years that the
Company is not liable to pay the amounts claimed. In the most recent of these decisions, the Supreme
Court dismissed a similar claim, reiterating that it is bound by its pronouncement in a number of cases
involving this promotion. By virtue of the precedential effect of the decided cases, the Company expects
tha remaining cases to be dismissed in due course.

The Company does not believa that the litigation in which the Company is currently involved or which is
presently pending or threatened is material, sither individually or in the aggregate. The Company has not
been involved in any bankruptcy, receivership or other similar proceedings. '
ITEM 4, SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
There was no matter submitted during the 4™ quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report to a vote of
security holders, through solicitation of proxies or otherwise. - :

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANGIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR ISSUER’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Market Information -
The common shares were jisted with the Philippine Stock Exchange ("PSE") on February 1, 2008, The
high and low sales prices of such shares for 2010 and 2009 are set out below.

Period High Low

July to Sept 2008 B2 46 R1.65
Oct to December 2008 £2.00 £0.64
Jan to March 2009 R0,09 £0.84
April to June 2009 B1.50 - P0.80
| July to Sept 2009 B2 45 £1.3z2
Oct to Decemnber 2009 ‘ £2.350 £2.00
Jan to March 2010 ' B2 70 - R2.02
April to June 2010 2305 - R24G

The ¢losing share price as of September 1, 2010 was P2,77

10



Stockholders : . : ‘ E
The Company has approximately 657 holders of common shares [with the PCD Nominee Corporation
(Filipino) and (Non-Filipino) considered as two holders] as of June 30, 2010 based on the number of
accounts registered with the Stock Transfer Agent. : ‘ ‘

The following are the top 20 hokiers of common shares based on the report 'furnished by the Stock
+ Transfer Agent as of June 30, 2010. ‘ ‘ '

Number of Percentage of |
NO. 1 Name ‘ Shares Held Ownem%ip '
1 PCD NOMINEE CORP {NON-FILIPINO) 1,574,666 897 42 63%
? | QUAKER GLOBAL INVESTMENTS B.V. 1,089,101,358 ?9.48%
3 PCD NOMINEE CORP. {FILIPINO) 932807916 - 20.26%
4 ORION LAND INC, 70,000,000 1.90%
5 YONG MICKY 20,000,001 0.54%
B BORROMEOQ, JOSEPH MARTIN H. 450,000 0.01%
7 M. J. SORIANC TRADING ING. 450,000 0.01%
8 YAN, LUCIO W, 300,000 0.01%
g MADARANG, WINEFREDA Q. 250,000 0.01%
12 | LUGTI, VALERIANO A, - 220,000 0.01%
10 | DABAD, LUIS G. 200,000 0.01%
11 BLANCAVER, RENEB. - 182,000 0.00%
13 | YU, FELIX 5. 149,998 0.00%
14 | MERCHAN BERNARDO 140,000 0.00%
15 | BORIANO, VICTOR MARTIN J. 130,000 0.00%
16 | IGNACIO, JUANITO R. 100,000 0.00%
17 | NARCISO, MA CELESTE S 100,000 0.00%
18 | PINEDA, MA. CORAZON V. - 100,000 0.00%
189 | UMALIL JOSE |, 100,000 0.00%
20} PINEDA, YZRAEL EDWIN DE VERA 89,600 0.00%.

Cash Dividends

The Board of Directors (BOD) approved several declarations of cash dividends atnounting to
£554 million in fiscal year 2010, 2369 million in fiscal year 2009 and 2400 million in fiscal year
2007. There were no cash dividends declarations in fiscal year 2008. Details of the declarations
are as follows: ‘ ' -‘ ‘

o Payable to
Dividend Per Stockholders of
Date of Declaration Share Record as of Date of Payment
June 21, 2007 B0.12 June 21, 2007 August 20, 2007
September 30, 2008 010+ Qctober 158, 2008 Navember 7, 2008
September 30, 2008 Q.15 October 15, 2009 October 20, 2009

On September 9, 2010, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividend amounting to P369 million or
P0.10 per share to stockholders of record as of September 24, 2010, payable on or before October 8,
2010, ‘ ‘

11



- Dividend Policy ‘ E : ‘ ‘ oo .

The Company has a dividend policy to declare dividends to stockholders of record, which are paid from

{he unrestricted retained earning. Any future dividends it pays will be at the discretion of the BOD after
taking inta account the earnings, cash flow, financial position, capital and operating progress, and other

factors as the BOD may consider relevant.. Subject ta the foregoing, the present policy is to pay cash -
dividends up to 50% of annual net income, This policy may be subject fo fulure revisions: ‘

Cash dividends. are subject fo approval by the BOD ‘wjthout‘ndad for stockholders' appfqva!. Stock
dividends require the further approval of the stockholders representing no less than 2/3 of our outstanding.
capital stock. S ' ' :

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities including Recent lssuance of Securities -
Conatituting an Exempt Transaction : . o ‘
There has been no recent sale of unregistered or exempt securifies including recent issuance of
securities constituting an exempt transaction. :

“PART Hf - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - fiscal 2010 versus 2009

The Company delivered a strong, milestone yaar in terms of top-ling sales. 1t continued its focus on
driving the growing NCB market and maintaining ¢SO share through continuing the strategic agenda to
drive affordability and availability across the Philippines. Net sales increased by 13.3% from 2009 and
have nearly doubled from five years ago, an impressive feat given the aggressive compelition and

marketplace challenges. : '

‘The sales surge was led by NCBs, pasiing an tmpressive 268% in revenue growth. With this development,
NCB share in the revenue mix grew from 26% ta 20%, which is in line with tha strategy to fully embrace
the heaith and weliness trend. CSDs also presented a strong 8% in revenue growth, surpassing the last 7
years growth in this market. The strong CSD sales were buoyed by the nationat elections and the hot
weather. : ‘

The impressive sales numbers however were tempered by riging sugar prices, which increased by 22%.
In 2009, sugar prices rose to @ 35-year high as rain damaged crops in Brazil, the largest producer, and
dry weather curbed output in india, the second-largest supplier. As supply slowed and demand continued
to rise, the inventory reserves of many countries, including the Philippines, became depleted resulting to
higher sugar prices and significantly affecting sugar-dependent food and beverage industries..

Despite this acute development, gross profit remainad steady at P4.21 billion compared to last years
gross profit of P4,19 billion, while operating income slipped to P98 million compared to last year's figure
of P1.1 billion. EBITDA likewise remained steady at P2.2 billion versus year ago figure of F2.2 billion,
while EBIT dropped to P1.04 billion versus year ago figure of P1.2 billion, weighed down by higher
depreciation and amortization resulting from recent expansion programs.

Management was able to mitigate the rise in sugar prices in part by continuing to successfully contral and
reduce operating expenses from 24% and 21% of sales in 2008 and 2008, respectively, to 20% in 2010,
Notable reductions are in the area of selling and distribution expenses (from 13% of sales in 2008 1o 12%
in 2010) where managements rationalization and re-engineering programs have managed to deliver
- Superiar service at much lower cost,

Marketing expenses as a percéntaga of sales were llkewise lower (from 4% of sales in 2009 to 3% of
sales in 2010). Focused marketing anchored on strategically targeted programs resulted in sales
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. Increases amidst modest marketing spending. Ganeral administrative expenses. remained steady at 4%

of sales in 2010 and 2009, showing a firm-wide effort to manage the conirollable variables in the income
statement. The Company’s continued efforts to drive top-line growth, while maintaining tight cost cantrol
wilt ba the sustaining force in the years to come. = - L

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - fiscal 2009 versus 2008.

Fiscal year 2009 registered a healthy 5% growth in net income and 19% growth in ogerating income aver
year ago level. |t maintained profitability, with EBITDA margin of 16%, EBIT margin of 8%, and Net
Income margin of 6%, The corresponding numbers for fiscal year 2008 are 15%, 8% and 8%,
respectively. o B : .

Net sales growth of 9.6% is driven mainly by growth in NCB brands such as Sting, Tropicana and
Gatorade as well as CSD growth in flavors, N :

In line with its strategy of aggressively tapping the healthy growth prospects for NCB, with health and
wellness as its platform and growing the business by targeting the broad CD mass market that stil}
constifutes the majority of the Philippine population, the Company continues to expand its offering of .
beverage products to make NCB available to rmore Filipinos at affordable prices and convenient
packaging. The Company has since complaeted the expansion projects in Cebu, San Fernando and loilo
which made it possible to offer its NCB products in 8oz returnable glass bottles (RGB) all over the
cauntry. ' ' ‘ o

The Company launched new product innovations such as Tropicana Summer Blends and Gatorade Tiger
and came out with high impact new packaging formats such as Pepsi Max black long neck 500 mif PET,
among other things in order to create buzz and bring excitement to the consumers as well as use
packaging to communicate and have a dialogue with consumers. It also launched the highly successful
Mountain Dew 750 mi RB to leverage the brand's strong puil in the trade. ‘ -

The intensified competition from a crowded CSD market along with the challenge posed by low-priced
brand compelled the Company to drop its prices. To counteract the adverse effect of a low price,
commoditized cola segment on its profitability, the Company continuges to maintain a healthy revenue mix
resulting to @ 3% higher average LRB prices. ‘ ‘ :

The weak economy, high inflation and stiff competition caused undue pressure on revenues and costs,
Gross profit margin dropped from 31.6% in 2008 to 29.4% in 2009 due 10 increased cost of inputs such as
sugar, CO2, packaging materials, fuel, et¢ during the 1% half of the fiscal year as well as depressed CSD
pricing brought about by intense competition. In spite of lower gross profit margin and higher
manufacturing depreciation, gross profit grew by 1.9% due to volume growth. '

On the other hand, operating income grew by 18.8% and operating income margin registered an
improverment from 7.4% in 2008 to 8.0% in 2009 due to effective cost management. However, an
increase in effective tax rate from 24.0% in 2008 fo 32.3%.in 2009 caused the net incorme margin to drop
from 5.9% to 5.6%. o

Operating expenses as a ratio {0 net sales decreased from 24 2% to 21.4% mainly due to decrease in
marketing expenses by 21.7%. The decrease in markeling expenses as a percentage of net sales
dropped from 5.1% to 3.7% and is due to targeted and prudent marketing spending program initiated by
management in 2009.

As a percentage of net sales, selling and distribution (5&D) expenses decreased from 14.1% to 13.4%.
In terms of absolute amount, S&D expenses increased by 4% as compared to a year ago level. The
- ingrease can be attributed mainly to volume growth as well as the Company's continued investment in its
distribution infrastructure such as RGBs, plastic cases and in-store refrigeration equipment, These
increases in S&D cost were offset by the savings on personnel, rental and utifities as a result of the
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rationalization of the number of its sales office as well as the effect of change in the estimated useful life
of its marketing equipment from 5 years to 7 years, o

General & administrative expenses decreased by 6% vs. year ago level. General and administrative
expenses decreased from 5.0% to 4.3% of net sales. Significant cost savings were realized due to
prudeant cost management. ‘

FINANCIAL CONDITIDN AND LIQUIDITY

For the fiscal year 2010, the Ccimpany has strong operating cash flows, i.e'. net cash providéd ‘by
. operating activities are substantially more than the net cash used in investing activities.

The Company’s operations are cash intensive. This capability to generate cash is one of its greatest
strengths. With its liquidity, the Company has substantial financial flexibility in varying operating policy in
response to market demands, in meeting capital expenditures through internally generatad funds and in
providing the Company with a strong financial condition that gives it ready access to financing alternatives
(refer to Note 4 to the 2010 Audited Financial Statements for a detailed discussion on the Company's
revolving credit facilities as of June 30, 2010). .

Credit sales over the past three years have changed from 62% of total sales in 2008 and 68% in 2009 to
64% in 2070. This reflects a shift from a direct distribution mode to a more efficient model of fostering
. partnership with distributors and multi-route Entrepreneurial Distribution Systern contractors as well as
increase in Modern Trade-business. Liquidity has remained heaithy. Collection period improved from 30
days in 2008 and 27 days in 2009 to just 26 days in 2010. Inventory days have decreased from 12 days
in 2008 and 10 days in 2009 to just 8 days in 2010, reflecting a more efficient inventory and production
management. Trade payable days have remainad at manageable levels. :

Increase in current assets from 22,293 million as of June 2009 to B2,758 million as of June 2010 were
due to the increase in cash and cash equivalents by 8231 million, inventory by 8122 million, receivables
by 887 million, and due to related parties by P49 million. The increase in cash is due o the improved
working capital management while the increases in receivables and inventories wers in line with increase
in sales volume.

Non-current assets decreased from 825,269 million as of June 2009 to #5208 millicn as of June 2010 due
to the decreased amount of Bottles and Cases (net of ameitization} by R116 million as well as decrease
in Other Non-Current assets by B35 million. These decreases were partially offset by the increase in
Plant, Property & Equipment by B88 million as well as by the increase in Jnvestments in Associates by B2
million. The increase in Plant, Property & Equipment, on the other hand, is largsly due to the continued
expansion of plant capacity. : ' :

Increase in current liabilities from B2 275 miffion as of June 2009 to 82,472 million as of June 2010 is
mainly due to increase in Accounts Payable & Accrued Expenses by B344 million. The increase in
‘Accounts Payable & Accrued Expenses is partially offset by the decreased amounts from income Tax
Payable by 298 million and Notes Payabie by 250 million. | '

Non-Current Liabilities increased from R577 million as‘of June 2009 to 8599 million as of June 2010 due
to the Increase in Deferred Tax Liabilities by R16 million and increase in Other Non-Current Liabilities by
P& million, o :

Total assets increased from £8,562 million as of June 2009 to #8,966 million as of June 2010 mainly due
to the significant increase in current assets described above. Total liabilities increased from R2 852
mitlion as of June 2009 to 83,071 million as of Jung 2010 mainly dus to similar factors stated in increase
in current liabilities. Total equity increased from 25,710 million to 85,894 milion on account of net
income of B738 million for the year less dividends of R554 million paid during the year. -
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MATERIAL COMMITMENTS FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Historically, the Company has sourced funding for capital expenditures essential to product innovation
_ initiatives and maintaining- operational capabilities through internally-generated funds .and long-term
‘borrowings. In recent years, it has met these requirements substantially out of operating cash flow, and
has incurred only short-term.debt to assist with temporary liquidity requirements. In January 2008, it had
embarked on an IPO, with net proceeds of approximately P1.2 billion, to fund the expansion of NCB
business. As of June 2010, tha IPO proceeds were fully utilized, The Company has completed the
expansion projects of Cebu, San Fernando and lloilo, Capital expenditure for fiscal yvear 2010 amounted
ta P1.127 billion. '

FACTORS THAT MAY IMPACT COMPANY'S OPERATIONS [ SEASONALITY ASPECTS
Refer to ltem 1 (2) (o) on discussion of Major Risks. ‘

SIGINFICANT ELEMENTS OF INCOME OR LOSS THAT DID NOT ARISE FROM CONTINUING
" OPERATIONS ‘ ' ‘ . , :
There was no income or [osses arising from discontinued operations.

ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Please see Exhibit | hereof for the 2010 Audited Financial Statements.

ITEM 8. INFORMATIOIN ON INDEPENDENT ACCQUNTANT

The Company has engaged the services of an independent Certified Public Accauntant (CPA) to conduct
an audit and provide objective assurance on the reasonableness of the financial statements and relevant
disclosures. The independent CPA is responsible solely to the Board of Directors. ‘

The appointment of the independent CPA is submitted to the Audit Committee, the Board of Directars and
sharcholders for approval. The representatives of the independent CPA. are expected to ke present
during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting and have the opportunity to make a statement on the
Company’s financial statements and results of operations, as required or appropriate. They are also
available to reply to queries during the said meeting. Upon request, the independent CPA can also be
asked to attend meetings of the Audit Committee and the Board, to make. presentations and reply to-
inquiries on matfers relating to the Company's financial statements,

The Company has appointed Manabat Sanagustin & Co. as its independent CPA for the fiscal year 2010. .
Aside from audit services, it has also engaged Manabat Sanagustin & Co. to perform tax assurance
services and render opinion on projects relating to the interpretation of tax laws, regulations and rulings.

Aggregate fees billed by the independent CPA for professional services in refation fo: (i) the audit of the
annual financial statements and services in connection with (a) statutory and reguiatory filings, and (b} the
initial public offering of the Company's shares: and (i) tax accounting, compliance, advice, planning and
any other form of tax services are summarized as follows: ‘

FY2010 FY 2009 FY 2008

statutory audit fees ‘R 368 millien B 3.50 miltion R 3.40 million
IPO-related audit fees - - 15.70 million
Tax advice fees - 0.33 million 0.25 millinn
Total ‘ B 3.68 miltion - B 3,83 million £ 19,35 miffion
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The Audit Committee of the Company reviews and approves the audit plan and scope of work for the
above services and ensures that the rates are competitive as compared to the fees charged by other
equally competent external auditors performing similar services. ‘

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
"AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE : ‘

There has been na change in the independent auditing firm or handling partner or disagreements with the ‘
independent CPA-on matters relating to the application and interpretations of accounting principles or
practices, tax laws and regulations, financial statement disclosures or audit scope and procedures during ‘
the three (3) most recent fiscal years. : ' ‘

PART lll - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
ITEM 16. DIREGTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Term of office , . :

Directors elected during the annual meeting of the stockholders wilf hald office for one year until their
successors are duly elected and qualified, except in case of death, resignation, disqualification or removal
-from office. Directors who were elected to fill any vacancy hald office only for the unexpired term of their
predecessors.

Diractors . :
The following are the names, ages, citizenship-and year position was assumed, of our incumbent
directors, including independent directors: :

. - Year Position

Name Age Citizenship was Assumed
Micky Yong ‘ 63 Singaporean 1997
Bunjl D'Souza 42 Indian 2009
James Eng, Jr. ' 68 American 2005
Tsang Cho Tai (Altan Tsang) 60 British 2005
John L. Sigalos 43 American 2009
Umran Beba ‘ . 45 Turkish 2010
Qasim Khan ‘ 53 Pakistani 2008
Jose M. Periquet, Jr. ‘ 64 Filiping 2007
Rafael M. Alunan 1il* 62 Filipino 2007 ]
Oscar 8, Reyes* 64 Filipina 2007

*ndependent Diractor ‘

16



- Executive Officors .
The following are the names, ages, positions, citizenship and year position was assumed: of our
incumbent executive officers; ' - :

o . | n Year Position |
Namel ‘Age Ciﬁ:zenshlp Position . was Assumed
. ‘ - : Chairman, Pregsidentand 2002
Micky Yong 63 Smgaporgan Chief Executive Officer
' Executive Vice-President and 2010
Chief Operating Officer for :

Partha Chakrabarti 48 | Indian Finance, Treasury,
‘ ‘ ' HR/EIRC/Legal, Manufacturing,
and Logistics ‘
: Executive Vice-President/ Chief 2010
Felix 8. Yu 61 Filipina Operating Officer for National
Sales Operations
Senior Vice-Prasident and Chief 2010
Financial Officer
Senior Vice-President, | 2008
Corporate Services Group
Senior Vice-President for 1698
Manufacturing and Logistics
Corporate Secratary and ' 2007
Compliance Officer o

Akash Shah 36 | Canadian

Roberto H. Goce 5 | Filipino

Daniel D. Gregorio, Jr. | 58 Filipino

Ma. Rosario C.Z. Nava | 41 * Filipino

Background Information and Business Expetience
Diractors:

MicKyY YoNnG ‘

Mr. Yong has held the office of Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation since 2002, but he has been a
director of the Corporation since the Guoca Group-Limited and its subsidiaries (“Guoco Group™) acquired
its interest in the Corporation in 1997. Since 1989, Mr. Yong has served as President of Guoco Assets
(Philippines), Inc., the Guoco Group's principal investrment vehicle in the Philippines. Mr. Yong was the
country manager and director of Dao Heng Bank Philippines and a diractor of First Lepanto Taisho
insurance, Tutuban Properties Inc., Guoco Securities Philippines and several other corporations under
the Guoco Group. Mr.-Yong holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from the University of
Singapore,

SUNIL D' Souza : '

Mr. D'Souza is Country Manager for the Philippines. of PepsiCo. He has been with PepsiCo far the past 8
years and held the position of Sales Director for the Philippines prior to his current appointment, He holds
a Bachelor of Engineering degree from the Pondicherry Engineering College, Pondicherry {University of
Madras) and a management degree from the Indian Institute of Management in Calcutta.

JAMES ENG, JR. ‘ :

Mr. Eng was an Executive Director of the Guaco Group Limited from 2001 to 2009, He was responsible
for group staff support functions for the Guoco Group. Before he joined the Guoco Group in 1994, Mr.
Eng previously worked with Hiram Walker, a division of Allied-Lyons. Postings included New York, Miami,
Londen, Hong Kong and Windsor Canada. During his time with Brout, Issacs & Co., Certified Public
Accountants, in New York City, he was responsible for the Managerment Services Division and was a
Management Consultant in Mew York for Computer Methods Corporation. He holds a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree from the University of North Carolina,
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TsaNG CHO TAI (ALLAN TSANG) o .

. Mr. Tsang is the Chief Financial Officer of the Guoco Group Limited. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Cerified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, as
- well as an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. . Mr, Tsang
was an associate of an intemational firm of accountants before joining the Guoco Group in 1989,

JOHN L. SicaLos ‘
Mr. Sigalos is currantly PepsiCo's Chief Financial Officer for the Asia-Pacific region. He has occupied a
variety of positions in PepsiCo for the past 12 years, including being Chief Financial Officer of PepsiCo
Thailand and Vice-President for Non-Carbonated Beverages in PepsiCo’s China business unit. He holds
an MBA from the Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania with dual major in Finance and Strategic

Management and a Bachelor of Arts degree in East Asian studies (Cum faude) from Yale University.

LUMRAN BEBA : :

Ms. Beba is currently PepsiCo’s President for the Asia-Pacific region, She started her journay with
PepsiCo in 1994 in the position of Commercial Director of Frito Lay in Istanbul, Turkey. Since then, she
has occupied various senior managerment positions across South Eastern Europe. Ms. Beba holds an’
MBA and Bachelor of Seience in Industrial Engineering both from the Bogazici University in Istanbul,
Furkey, o ' ‘

Qagim KHAN .

Mr. Khan has been connected with PepsiCo for the last 21 years and has occupied various executive and |
managerial roles in different regional offices of PepsiCo. He is currently the General Manager of
PepsiCo’s North Asia Pakistan Philippines Business Unit. ' Prior to joining PepsiCo, he worked for Procter
& Gamble. He holds an MBA and Marketing degrees (with honors) from Michigan State University.

JOSE M. PERIQUET, JR. . :

Mr. Periquet is the President and the Chief Executive Officer of the Metropolitan Insurance Company,
Inc.,, a position he has held since 1999 up to the present. He has been employed by Metropolitan
Insurance since 1985, when he joined as Acting President and Manager. He joined AIG in New York in
1867 and was later assigned to AU (Philippines), Inc. where he held the position of Senlor Vica-President
and Director. Mr. Periquet is also a director of MIC Holdings, Ine., Bradstock insurance Brokers Inc. and
the Athenaeum Condomintum Corporation. Mr. Periquat holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics from
Atenao de Manila University and a Master's degree in Economics from Fordham University.

RAFAEL M. ALUNAN lil ‘

Mr. Alunan has had extensive experience in the private and public sectors. He is currently the President
of Lopez Group Foundation In¢., @ member of its Board and Boards of Lopez Group-related foundations.
He also sits on the Boards of Sun Life of Canada (Fhilippines), Inc., Sun Life Financial Plans, Inc. and
Sun Life Asset Management Company; and sits on various Board commitiees. Mr. Alunan is also on the
Boards of the Asian Institute of Management and the University of St. La Salle, He is a regular columnist
of Business World. Mr. Alunzn obtained his double degree in Business Administration and History-
Political Science from the De La Salle University, attended the Master's in Business Administration-Serior
Executive Program, of the Ateneo de Manila University, and obtained a Master's degree in Public
Administration from Harvard University, John F. Kennedy Schoo! of Government.

OsCAR 8. REYES - o N ‘

Mr. Reyes was Country Chairman and President of Pilipinas Shell Petroleumn Corporation for many years.
He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Economics (cum laude) from Ateneo de Manila University and participated
in the Program for Management Development at the Harvard Business School. He is currently the Senior
Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, and Director of the Manila Eleciric Company. He also
serves as a director and a membar of board committees in the boards of companies engaged in banking,
insurance, telecommunications, water distribution, reat estats, shipping and mining.



Executive Officars:

PARTHA CHAKRABART! | R | ‘ ‘
Mr. Chakrabarti has been employed by PepsiCa since 1994 and he remains a PepsiCo employee while
- holding his current position in PCPPI under a formal secondment agreement, He is currently PCPPI's
Executive Vice-President/Chief Operating Officer for Finance, Treasury, HR/EIRC/Legal, Manufacturing,
and Logistics. Mr. Chakrabarti began his career with PepsiCo india, where he held a nurber of positions
before moving to Vietnam as Chief Financial Officer of PepsiCo's business there. Before joining
- PepsiCo, he worked for ICl India. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce from the
University of Calcutta and an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India.

FELIX S, YU : o o
Mr. Yu is the Executive Vice-President/Chief Operating Officer for National Sales Operations of PCPPI.
He joined the predecessor of PCPPI in 1983 and has served In various roles in. sales and plant
management. Prior to joining PCPPI, he worked for the CFC-URC Group of Companies and before that,
Nestie Philippines. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from De La Salle
Linivarsity. : -
AKASH SHAM , '
Mr. Shah is currently the Senior Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer of PCPP| under a secondment
agreement from PepsiCo of which he remains an employse: He has been with PepsiCo since 2003 and
has held various Finance positions in the Asia-Pacific Region, including China, Thailand, and across
South East Asia. Prior to joining PepsiCo, he worked for A.T. Kearney, Inc in North America. He holds an
MBA from INSEAD and a Bachelor of Commerce degree from Queen’s University in Canada.

RoBerTo H. Goce ‘ :

Mr. Goce's background is in sales and logistics. Prior to joining PCPPI in 1997, he worked for San Miguel
Corporation and before that, he held various positions in grains and fertilizer industries. ‘Mis experience
encompasses business planning, management and organization audits, and training and davelopment.
He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Management from Ateneo de Manila University and
is & founding member of the Distribution Management Association of the Philippines.

DANIEL D. GREGORIO, JR. ‘ , .
Mr. Gregorio began his career as a systems analyst for Coca-Cola Bottling Philippines, Inc. and rose to
the position of Chief Accountant. In 1987, he moved to indonesia as Country General Manager for Coca-
Cola Amatil, the owner of the local Coca-Cola boettler.  He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Industrial Engineering. ‘

Ma. Rosario C. 7, NAva , ‘

Ms. Nava is a practicing lawyer and a member of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines since 1995. She
has been a director and the Corporate Secretary of Solectron Philippines, Inc. since 2005 and has been
the Corporate Secretary of CPAC Monier Philippinas, Inc. since 2004 and is also currently a director
thereof.. She was also a Director of Hewleft-Packard Philippines Corp. from 2001 to 2002, and re-elected
in 2004 up o 2007, and was its Corporate Secretary from 2006 to 2007. She holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Legal Managernent with honors from Ateneo de Manila University and a Juris Doctor
degree from the Ateneo de Manila Law School.

Resignation of Directors ‘ -

No Director hae resigned or declined to stand for re-alection to the Board of Directors since the date of
the last Annual Stockholders’ Meeting due to any disagreement on any matter relating to our operations,
policias or practices.



Significant Employees and Family Rﬂlatmnshlps

No single person is expected to make a significant contr;butlon fo the business since the Company

considers the collective efforts of all the employees as instrumental to the overall success of the
¢ hbusiness. The Company is not aware of any family relationship between or among the aforementionad
Directors or Exec:utwe OfF icers up to the fourth civil degree. ‘

Except for the payment of annual dnrectors fee and per diem allowance the Company has not had any
transaction during the last two (2) years in which any Director or Executive Officer had a direct or indirect
interest. ‘ ‘ ‘

Involvement in Gertam Legal Proceedmgs

None of the aforementionad Directors or Executive Officers is or has been involved in any criminal or
bankruptcy proceeding, or is or has been subject to any judgment of a competent court barring or
otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of business, or has been found to have. violated any
secirities laws during the past 5 years and up to the latast data.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers ‘
The aggregale compensation paid in the fiscal years 2010, 2009, 2008, and 2007 to the foliowing
Executive Officers is set out in tha tabla balow:

1. Micky Yang — Chairman, President & Chief Executive Officer ' _

2. Felix 8. Yu - Executive Vice-President & Chief Operating Officer for National Sales Qperations

3. Partha Chakrabarti — Executive Vice-President & Chief Operating Officer for Finance, Treasury,

Human Resources/EIRC/Legal, Manufacturing and Logistics -

4. Akash Shah — Senior Vice-President & Chief Financial Officer :

5. Danigl D, Gregerio, Jr. — 3enior Vice-President for Manufacfuring & Logistics

8. Robero H. Goce — Senior Vice-President, Corporate Services Group

Name . Position Year Basic Bonus Others
‘ ' compensation
Aggregate for above- 2007 | 842 300,000 B18,300,000 -
narmed officers 2008 43,708,000 22,066,000 -
2009 40,716,000 11,618,000 -
2010 43,739,000 20,444 000
All other directors and 2007 | - - -
officers as a group 2008 - - - B 1,336,765
unnamed 2009 - - 3,352 541
2010 2 635,000*

* This relates to per diem allowances and annual directors fee paid to the directors.

There are no special employment contracts between the Company and the above Executive Officers.
Non-executive Directors are entitled to a per diem allowance of US%1,000 for sach attendance in the
Corporation’s Board meatings and committes meetings, except for Audit Committee meetings where the
par diem allowance is US$2,000. In addition, each Director are entitled to recejve an annual directors’
fee in the amount of B500,000. Seven of the Directors representing the Guoco Group and Quaker Global’
Investments B. V. have waived the per diern allowance as well as the annual directors’ fee,

Thare are no outstanding warrants or uptnons held by the above Executive Officers and all such officers
and Directors as a group. : '
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ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
Security Ownership of Record and Benefmlal 0wners of at Least 5% of Our Securities as of June

30, 2010
Name of
S o ] Bonaficial .
Title of - | Nama'and Address of Record Owner and Owner and - - Number of Sharas | L
Class * Relationship with lssuer relationship | Gitizanship Held Per¢entage
with racord
owner
F’C-;P Nominae Corporation (Non- Flllplnu) ‘ ‘ ‘
Common | 37" Fleor, The Enterprise Canter Please refer to G a
shares | Ayala Avenue, Makati City footnote Mon-Filipino 1,574,666,897 42.6303%
Relationship ~ plaase refer to footnate ‘
Quaker Global Investments B.V." Same as
Commen | konnabaan 35, 3642 Eb Utrecht The ndicated in Dutch 1,089,101,358 | 20.4848%
Relationship ~ stockhoidar column 2
Holpg Way Holdings, Inc.” Same az
Charta. | 252 Sen Gl oyat v, Makatrciy | Iioslsdin | Sngaporean | 857788625 | 23.2226%
Relationship Stockholder column 2
PLCD Neminee Corparation (Filipino)’
Common | 37" Fioor, The Enterprise Center Please refar to - :
sharas Ayala Avenue, Makati City ‘ footnote Filipina 932,807,918 25.2562%
Ralatianship — pleass referfo fnotnote ‘
Glfoco Assets (Philippines), Inc Sarme a5 ‘ ‘
Corn | S coor suy Conorme o | oy | swwonan | assasz | sareen
Relationship - Stockholder : column 2

' PCD Nominee Corporation is the registered owner of shares beneficially owned by participants in the Philippine Central
Depository, Inc. (PCD), a private company organized to implement an automated book entry system of handling securities
transactions in the Philippines. While PCD Nominee Corporation is the registered owner of the shares in the Corporation’s
books, the benefictal ownership of such shares pertains to PCD participants (brokers) and/or their non-Fitipino clients,
whether individuals or corporations, in whose names these shares are recorded in their respective books. Under PCD
procedures, when an issuer of a PCD-eligible issue will hold a stockholders” meeting, PCD will execute a pro-forma proxy
in favor of the participants for the total number of shares in their respective principal securitics account, as wel{ as for the
total number of shares in their client securities account. For shares held in the principal securities account, the participant
is appointed as proxy with full votmg tights and powers as registered owner of such shares. For shares held in the client
securities account, the participant is appointed as proxy with the obligation to constitute a sub-proxy in favor of its cnem:s
with full voting and other rights for the number of shares beneficially owned by them.

? Quaker Global Investments B.V. (“QGI”) is a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of
the Netherlands with principal office at Zonnebaan 33, 3542 EB Utrecht, The Netherlands. QGI, throush its Doard of
Directors, will designate Mr. Sunil D*Souzato vote its shares of stock in the Corporation. '

* Hong Way Holdings, Inc, (“HWHI") is & cmpcrrﬂtmn duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws
of the Philippines with offices at the 30" Floor, Burgundy Corporate Tower, 252 Sen, Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati
City. HWHI, through its Board of Dlrectors usually designates Mr. Micky Yong to vote its shares of stock in the
Corporatmn

Same as footnote 2 above except that the beneficial ownership of shares registered in the name of PCD Nominee
Cotporation pertains to PCD participants (brokers) and/or their Filipino clients, whether individuals ot cotporations, in
whose names these shares are recorded in their respective bools.

* Guoco Assets (Phxhppmes), inc. (“GAPI") is a corporatmn dnly organized and existing under and by virtue of the

"laws of the Philippines with principal office at the 30 Floor, Burgundy Corporate Tower, 252 Sen. Gil Puyat
Avenue, Makati City. GAPI, through its Board of Directors, usually clemgnatss Mr. Micky Yong to vots its shares
of stock in the Corporation.
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Security Ownership of Managerﬁent as of June 30, 2010

Amount & Nature of

E‘;f Name and Address of Owner Beneficial Citizenship. Pe&cl:::; of
Ownership
Micky Yong 20,000,001 - dirsct
Common | Chakman of the' Board, Pre51dent and ownarship excapt for * Singaporasn 0.5415%
zhareg Chiaf Exacutive Officer ‘ one qualifyi hare
/o Km. 29 National Road. Barangay Tunasan, Muntinlupa City 4 g = ‘
Sunit D' Souza '
Cso'?;rrggn Man- E;cec:utwa Diractor 1* Indian Nil
c/o 217 Figor, LKG Tower, 6801 Avala Avenue, Makati Clty
James Eng, Jr.
Commeon Non-Executlva Director g Arnerican Nil
ghares e/a 50" Floor, The Center, . :
95 Quean's Road, Centra[ Hong Kong
Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang)
Gommon | Non-Executiva Diractor . - .
shares | c/o 50" Floor, The Center, L Brifish Nil
| 99 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong
'+ John L. Sigalos
Comman . Non-Exacutive Director . . )
shares | cfo 20" Floor Caroline Centar f American Nil
28 Yun Ping Road, Causaway Bay. Hong Kong
Urnran Beba -
Common Non-Executlve Director yo “Furkish .
shares oo 20" Floor Careline Center urkis Nit
28 Yun Ping Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Qagirn Khan
Common | Non-Executive Director A .
shares | ofo 20" Floor Garaline Center T Pakistant Nil
28 Yun Ping Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
Jose M. Periquat, Jr.
Commaon | Non-Executive Diractor 4 Eilini Nil
shares | cfo 3" Floor, Athenaeum Building, 160 .P. Leviste Street, tipino ‘
Saleedo Village, Makatl Gity
Rafael M. Alunan 1l ‘
Commen mdependent Diracter . 1+ Filinin Nit
sharez clo 5 Floor, Benpres Building, Exchange Road carnar Ang !
Meraico Avenua Ortlgas Center Pamg City
Ozcar 5. Rayas
Common | Indapendent Director - Filini Nil
sheres c/o Unit 2504 Corporate Center, 139 Valera Street, Salcedo HpinG !
Village, Makati City
Partha Chakrabarti
Comman Executiva VIt_:e—F'resident and
shares Chief Operating Officer far Finance, Traasury, ] Indian 0%
HR/EIRC/Legal, Manufacturing and Logistics
&f0 Km. 28 National Road, Barangay Tunasan, Muntmlupa City
Falix 3. Yu
Common | Executive Vice-President and Chief Operating Officer for 349,998 - direct Filini 0.0095%
shares | Natlonal Sales Operations awnership fipino U035%
/o Kim, 29 National Read. Barangay Tunasan, Muntinlupa Gity
Akash Shah , ‘
Common | Senior Vice-Prasident and Chiaf Finarcisl Officer 0 Canadian 0%
Shares | c/o Km. 29 National Road, Barangay Tunasan, Muntinlupa Gity
Rokerto H. Goce
C;:z ::gn Seniar Vice-Prasident, Corporate Services Group 1 Filipino 0%
¢/o Km. 29 National Rnad Barangay Tunasan, Muntinlupa City
Daniel O. Gragorio, Jr. ‘
G;;;':;g” ‘Senior Vice-President for Manufacturing and Logistics m‘ﬂ)n%;sﬂ{ect Filipina 0.0019%
c/o Km. 29 National Road, Barangay Tunasan, Muntintupa Glty R
Ma. Rosario C, Z. Nava T
Common Curporate Secretary 10,000 — direct .
shares | c/o 7" floar The Pearlbank Centre 146 Valero Straet, Saloedo ownership Filipina 0.0003%
Village, Makati City '

* Each of the directors is the registered awner of at least one qualifying share.
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The aggregate sharehu.ldmgs of directors and kay ofﬁcérs as of Juna 30, 2010 are 20,430,008 shares
which is approximately 0.5531% of outstanding capital stock.

Changes in Controj ' i ‘ ‘
The Company is not aware of any voting trust agreement or any other similar agreement which may result
~ in a change in conirol. No change in control has occurred since the beginning of its last fiscal year.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Refer to Note 14 to the 2010 Audited Financial Statements for detaifs on related party transactions.

PART IV = CORPORATE GOVERNANCE" -

The Company’s Manual on Corparate Governance, which was adopted on June 21, 2007, and revised on
April 14, 2010, details the standards by which it conducts sound corporate governance that is coherent
and consistent with relevant laws and regulatory rules, and constantly strives to create value for its
stockholders.

Compliance with the Manual's standards is monitored by the Company’s Compliance Cﬁfﬁcer. Ultimate
responsibility rests with the Board of Directors, which alsa maintains three (3) standing cornmittees apart
from the Executive Commities, each charged with oversight into specific areas of the business activities:

Executive Committee . _
The Executive Committee of the Board is respansible for developing and menitoring the Gompany's risk
management policies. This Commitiee, which meets. regularly, reviews the detailed financial and
opetating performance of the company every month and reviews progress against the relevant Annaual
Operating Plan and Operating Targets, monitor the Company’s progress against key initiatives, pricing
strategies and plans, sales and marketing plans, capital expenditure planning and key decisions on
organization structure and people. s

Based on tha Manual, the Executive Committee shall be composed of at least five mambers, namely, the
President-Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Operating Officer/s, the Chief Financial Officer, and such
other directors.

The incurnbent Chairman and members of the Executive Committee are as follows: Messrs. Micky Yong
{Chairmany), Partha Chakrabarti (Chief Operating Officer for Finance, Treasury, Human Resources, Legal, .
Manufacturing and Logistics), Fellx 5. Yu (Chief Operating Officer for Sales), Akash Shah (CFO), Sunil
D'Souza, James Eng Jr., Tsang Cha Tai {Allan Tsang) and Qasim Khan, ' :

Audit Committee ‘

The Audit Commitiee assists the Board in its fiduciary responsibilities, as it provides an independent and
objective assurance to management and shareholders that business operations are carried according to
approved standards and objectives, and the Company’s resources are preserved and productive. This
committee meets at least four times a year.

Based on the Manual, the Audit Committee must be comprised of at least three directors, preferably with
accounting and financial background. Two of the members must be independant directors, including the
Chairman of the committee. The Audit Committee reports to the Board and is required to meet at teast
once avery three months.

The incumbent Chairman and members of the Audit Committee are as follows: Messrs, Oscar 5. Reyes
(Chairman), John L. Sigales, Tsang Cho Tai (Allan Tsang), and Rafael M. Alunan It
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Compensation and Remuneration Committee : :

The Compensation and Remuneration Committee, based on objective and impartial studies, utilizes a
formal and transparent framewaork in determining the remuneration of the members of the Board and the
Company's key exscutives. This committee’s decisions on compensation issues are consistent with the
requirements of objectivity, fairmess and relevance. This commitiee meets at least once a year.

Based on the Manual, thé Compensation and Remuneration Committee must be comprised of at least
three members, including one independent director. The Compensation and Remuneration Cormnmittee
reports to the Board and is required to meet at least once éach year. -

The incumbent Chairman and meémbers of the'Compehsation and Remuneration Commitize are as
follows: Messrs. James Eng Jr, (Ghairman), Micky Yong, John L. Sigalos and Rafael M. Atunan Iil.

Nomination Committee o

The Nomination Committee ensures that the PCPPI Board of Directors is made up of visionary, ethical
and competent business leaders who can contribute to the vast range of ideas and reach decisions that
will protact and grow the business. This committee also makes sure that the designated Board members
address the higher purposes of the company as a responsible enterprise which has a positive value on
the communities where it operates. The Commitiee meets at least ance a year,

Based on the Manual, the Nomination Committee must be comprised at laast three membaers, ihcluding
one independent director. The Nomination Committee reports to the Board and is required to meet at
" least once each year. ‘ '

The incumbent Chairman and members of the Nomination 'Committee are as follows: Messrs. Micky
Yong (Chairman), James Eng Jr,, John L. Sigalos and Rafael M. Alunan .

For purposes of evaluating compliance with the Manual, the Corporation has adopted the self-rating form
prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). The Corporation has complied with its
Manual through the election of two (2) independent directors to the Corporation’s Board, the consfitution
of the Audit, Compensation and Remuneration and Nomination Committess pursuant to its By-laws and
the election of the Chairman and members of such committees, which include the independent directors;
the conduct of regular meetings of the Board of Directors and the various committees of the Board above
stated, adherence to the written Code of Conduct prepared by the Corporation's Human Resources
Departrment; and adherence to applicable accounting standards and disclosure requirements.

The Corporafion adheres to a business plan, budget and marketing plan. Management prepares and
submits to the Executive Committee .of the Board and to the Board, on a regular basis, financial and
operational reports which enable the Board and Management to assess the effectiveness and efficiency
of the Corporation, -

While the Corporation has fulfilled its corporate governance obligations and there has been no deviation

from the Manual as of date, it continues to evaluate and review its Manual to ensure that best practices
on corporate govemance are being adopted. '

24



 PARTV - SIGNATORIES
The followmg are the authorized signatories of the Company

1. "Micky Yong in his capamty as the Chairman of the Board as well as President and Chief Executive
- Officer of the Company, Said posltmns are the Company's equwalent positions for principal
executive officer,

2, Partha Chakrabarti in his capacity as the Executwe Vice-President and Chief Qperating C)fftc:er Said
position is'the Company's equivalent position for pnncrpal operatmg officer.

3. Akash Shah in his capacny as the Senior Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer. Said posntlon is
the Company ] equwalent posmon for pnnmpal financial officer,

4. Honevlin C. Castoio in her capacity as AVP for Planning and Repomng of the Company. Said
positien is the Company's aquwalent position far comptroller and principal accounting officer.

5. Ma. Rosario C. Z. Nava in her capacity as the Corporate Secretary of the Company.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant {o the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporatlon Code, this
ﬁort ig signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the Clty of
tinlupa Cityon  SEP 15 2010 |

By:
PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILS., INC..

g flanfdd

MICKY PARTHA CHAKRABARTI
. Chairman, Pmmdent and ‘ . Executive Vice-President anc
Chief Execulive Officar . Chief Qperating Officer
AKASH SHAH HONEYLIN C, CASTOLO
Senior Vice-President and ‘ AVP-Planning and Reporting
Chief Financial Officer ‘

“MA. ROSARIO C.Z. NAVA
Corporate Secrefary
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REPUBLEG OfF THE PHILIPPI‘NES)
Muntinlupa City ) .8.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me in the City of Muntiniupa City  this

__thdayof SEP 15 2010 by:
Competent

Name . Evidence of Identity
Micky Yong | Passport No.E1376652C
Partha Chakrabart | Passport No, 21751780
Akash Shah | - Passport No. BA847570
Honeylin C. Castolo Passport No. 135089605
Ma. Rosario C. Z. Nava Paséport No. XX 1856523

‘Date/Place lssued
Sept. 1, 2009/ Singapore
Feb. 26, 2008 / Manila
Oct. 22, 2b09 / Bangkok

Qct. 21, 2005 / Manila

- Aug. 23, 2008 / Manila

who have satisfactorily proven their identity to me through the above identification, that they are
the same person who personally signed the foregoing instrument before me and acknowledged

that they executed the same.
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FEP5I-COLA FRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

AMENDED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008



Mangbat Sanagustin & Co., CPAs Telephore  +83 (2} 885 7000

The KPMG Center, S/F Fax +63 (2) B84 1985
G787 Ayala Avenua Internet wiwwy kpmg.com.ph
Makati City 1226, Matro Manila, Philippines E-Mail manils@kpmg.com. ph

Branchaes - Subic - Cebu - Bagoiod - loila
FPRC-BOA Registration Na, 0003
SEC Accraditation Ng, 0004-FR-2
BSP Acgredited

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

EURBAY GF TRTERNAT REVEATR
LARGE Taxpovers speyvng

LARGE ¥, RS ASSINTANTE DlymioN
The Board of Directors and Stockholders { ST
Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc, PAYEL SEP 15 opig | sos
Km. 29, National Road !;—-w»wﬁ-_mww.,.é
Tunasan, Muntinlepa City RECEIvE B

ABEGALL A, ALAESTANTE
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc.,
which comprise the statements of financial position as at June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2010, and notes, comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in aceordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes;
designing, implementing and maintaining internal! control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances,

Auditors ' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on thesc financial statements based on our audits,
We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Anditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statemenits in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but pot
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Manabat  Senegustin & Co, CPas, & Fhilipping
parmarshie ene a rrember A of tha KPMG notwork of
indepancant rmmber firmg efflliated with KPMG Intamationsl
Cooparative ("KPMG Intemmtional”), 2 Swizi sntity,
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Opinion

In cur opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2010, in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.
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Manabat Sanagustin & Go., CPAs Telephone  +63 (2) 585 7000

The KPMG Center, 9/F Fax +63 {2) 894 1985
G787 Ayala Avenue Internet WwWw. kpmg.com_ph
Makati City 1228, Matro Manila, Philippines E-Mail manila@kpimg. com.ph
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Ine.
Km. 29, National Road

Tunasan, Muntinlupa City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of
Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, included in this
Form 17-A and have issued our report thereon dated September 15, 2010.

Qur audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Reconeiliation of Retained Earnings Available for
Dividend Declaration is the responsibility of the Company’s management. This schedule is
presented for purposes of complying with the Securities and Exchange Commission
Memorandum Circular No. 11, Series of 2008, Guidelines on the Determination of Rerained
Eamnings Available of Dividend Declaration, and is not part of the basic financial statements.
This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in cur opinion, fairly states in all material respects, the financial
statements data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as a whole, ‘
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PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Amounts in Thousands)

June 30

See Notes to the Financial Siatements. |

REGCE!
ABEGAIL & ALAESTANTE |

(LAY T,

- 8,965,869

Note 2010 2009
ASSETS |
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 P643,613 P413,088
Receivables - net ] 1,075,420 987,965
Inventories A 825,467 703,963
Due from related parties 14 165,085 116,454
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 48,560 71,928
Total Current Assets 2,758,145 2,293,398
Noncurrent Assets
Investments. in associates & 529,988 527,723
Bottles and cases - net 910,11 2,325,289 2,441,198
Property, plant and equipment - net 10, 11 3,243,647 3,156,001
Other noncurrent assets - net 108,800 143,941
Total Noncurrent Assets 6,207,724 6,268,863
P8,965,369 P8,562,261
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 7, 2, / 4, 24, 27 P2,412,.870 P2,068,906
Income tax payable - 38,840 156,456
Notes payable 7,0 10 17 - 50,000
Total Current Liabilities 2,471,710 2,275,362
Noncurrent Liabilities ‘
Deferred tax liabilities - net 13 391,887 375,723
Other noncurrent liabilities 24, 27 207,790 201,304
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 599 674 577,027 -
Total Liabilities 3,071,387 2,852,389
Equity '
Capital stock 25 554,066 554,066
Additimal\paid&n capital 25 1,197,369 1,197,369
Ratained. garnings 26 4,143,047 3,958,437
Total Equity T 5,894,482 5,709,872
480E T xoneags A8 SFRVICE P8,562,26]

LTE Ty
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PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PI-IILIPPINES INC,

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Years Ended June 30

‘ Note 2010 2009 2008

NET SALES 15,22 P16,128.845 P14,232,045 P12,980,886
COST OF ‘ , ‘

GOODS SOLD /4, 16, 19, 20, 24, 27 11,917,903 10,042,738 8,874,106
GROSS PROFIT 4,210,942 4,189,307 4,106,780
OPERATING EXPENSES
Selling and

distribution 14,17, 19 20, 24, 27 2,004,950 1,902,574 1,830,309
General and

administrative 14, 18, 19, 20, 24, 27 708,092 620,850 648,080
Marketing expenses 14 501,774 520,916 664,935

3,214,816 3,044,340 3,143,324
~ INCOME FROM
OPERATIONS 996,126 1,144,967 063,456
FINANCE AND OTHER

INCOME (EXPENSE)

Interest income 3 14 12,947 17,234 22,581
Equity in net earnings of

assoclates ) 2,265 2,221 20,028
Interest expense 11 (2,783) (21,972) (35,713)
Other income - net 45915 . 38,979 30,567

58,342 36,462 37,463
INCOME BEFORE INCOME,

TAX 1,054,468 1,181,429 1,000,919
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13 315,792 381,739 240,222
NET INCOME/TOTAL

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P738,676 P799,690 P760,697
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share 27 P0.20 P0.22 P0.22

BEEAY OF THTERNAL REVERUE

See Notes to the Financial Statements.
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PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(Amounts in Thousands)

Years Ended June 30

‘ Note 2010 2009 2008
CAFPITAL STOCK
Balance at beginning of year P554,066 P554,066 P496,948
Issuance during the year 25 - - 57,118
Balance at end of year 554,066 554,066 554,066
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN
CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of year 1,197,369 1,197,369 59,473
Issuance during the year 25 - - 1,275,622
Transaction cost on initial public
offering 25 - - (137,726)
Balance at end of year 1,197,369 1,197,369 1,197,369
RETAINED EARNINGS |
Balance at beginning of year 3,958,437 3,527,951 2,767,254
Net income forthe year 738,676 799,690 760,697
Dividends declared 26 (554,066) (369,204) -
Balance at end of year 4,143,047 3,958,437 3,527,951
P5.894,482 P5,709,872 - P5,279,386

See Notes 1o the Financial Statemenis,



PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in Thousands)

-Years Ended June 30

_ Note 2010 2009 2008
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES ‘
Income before income tax P1,054,468 P1,181,429 P1,000,919
Adjustments for; ‘
Depreciation and arnortization i9 1,147,314 1,025,824 969,611
Retirement cost 24 53,460 34,791 67,708
Allowance for probable losses
in values of bottles and cases,
machinery and equipment,
impairment losses, inventory
ohsolescence and
others provisions - net 6.7 9 28,602 112,615 21,920
[nterest expense 2,788 21,972 35,713
Interest income (12,947) (17,234) (22,581)
Equity in net ecarnings of
associates 8 (2,265) (2,221} . (20,028)
Gain on disposal of property
and equipment (1,650) (1,841 (1,527)
Operating income before .
working capital changes 2,269,767 2,355,335 2,051,735
Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables ] (71,524) (159,923) (82,985)
Inventories 7 (127,192) (48,959) (84,718)
Due from related parties {48.631) 104,075 (130,015)
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets 23,368 41,324 (52,207)
Increase (decrease) in accounts ‘ ‘
payable and accrued expenses 12 156,356 (8,414) (138,593)
Cash generated from operations 2,202,144 2,283,438 1,563,217
Interest recéived 12,671 18,061 C 22035
Income taxes paid (240,174) (139,272) (181,196)
Contribution to plan assets 24 (56,000) (48,000) (54,000}
Interest paid (2,785) (22,490) - (39.957)
Net cash provided by operating ‘
activities 1,915,856 2,091,737 1,310,099

. F orwant



Yeiars Ended June 30

Noie

2010 2009 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of ‘

propetty and equipment 10 P10.454 F5,370 P17,681
Decrease (increase) in other :

noncurrent assets 35,141 (5.902) 012
Additions to: ‘

Property, plant and equipment 10 (679,743) (833,864) (1,309,518)

Bottles and cases .9 (447,117) (568,275) (671,301)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,081,265) (1,802,671) (1,962,226)
CASH FLOWS FROM

' FINANCING ACTIVITIES .

Cash dividends paid 26 (554,065) (365.204) (400,000)
Proceeds from (repayments of): ‘

Notes payable 11 (50,000) (97,100) 98,500

Long-term debt - - (283,333)
Proceeds from issuance of shares of

stocks - - 1,195,014
Net cash provided by (used in)

financing activities (604,066) (466,304) 610,181
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 230,525 (177,238) (41,946)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 413,088 590,326 632,272
CASH AND CASH :

EQUIVALENTS AT END OF

YEAR 3 P643,613 P413,088 P390,326

See Notes (o the Financial Statements,



PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data and
When Otherwise Stated)

1. Reporting Entity

Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. (the “Company™) was registered with the
Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on March 8, 1989, primarily to
engage in manufacturing, sales and distribution of carbonated soft-drinks (CSD) and non-
carbonated beverages (NCB) to retail, wholesale, restaurants and bar trades. The
registered office address and principal place of business of the Company is Km. 29,
National Road, Tunasan, Muntinlupa City.

2. Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been preparcd in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS includes statements named
PFRS and Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), including Philippine Interpretations
from International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), issued by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council. ‘

The financial statements of the Company which comprise statements of financial position
as at June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended June 30, 2010 were approved and authorized for issye by the Company’s Board of
Directors (BOD) on September 15, 2010. ‘

Certain accounts in the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2009 and statements
of cash flows for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 have been reclassified to
conform to the 2010 presentation,

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in

Philippine peso, which is also the Company’s functional currency and all values arg
. rounded to the nearest thousands, except per share data and when otherwise indicated.

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the financial staternents in accordance with PFRS requires
management to make estimates and judgments that affect the application of accounting
policies and the amounts reported in the financial statements. The estimates and
Jjudgments used in the accompanying financial statemnents are based on management’s
evaluation of relovant facts and circumstances as of the date of the Company’s financial
statements. Actual results may differ from these estimates,



Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on
historical experiences and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any {uture periods
affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estiniation uncértainty and critical
Jjudgments in applying accounting. policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements are as follows:

Leases ay Lessee
The Company has entered into various lease agreements as lessee,

The Company has determined that the lessor reteins all significant risks and rewards of
ownership of properties which are leased out under operating lease agreements, Rent
expense pertaining to these leased properties amounted to P179 million in 2010, P153
million in 2009 and P162 million in 2008 (see Notes 14, 16, 17, 18 and 27).

The Company has determined that lease agreements on pallets and power generation
facilities qualify as a finance lease since the provisions of the lease agreements
effectively transfer ownership of the assets to the lessee by the end of the lcase term., As
of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the present value of minimum lease payments amounted to
P226 million and P85 million, respectively (see Notes 9, 12 and 27).

Functional Currency

Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the
Company, the functional currency has been determined to be the Philippine peso. It is the
currcncy that mainly influenices the sales price of goods and the cost of providing these
goods.

Contingencies ,

The Company is cutrently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimate of the
probable costs for the resolution of these claims has beern developed in consultation with
outside counsel handling the Company’s defense relating to these martters and is based
upen an analysis of potential results. The Company currently does not believe that these
proceedings will have a material adverse effect on its financial statements, [t is possible,
however, that future financial performance could be materially affected by changes in the
estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to these proceedings
(see Note 27).

Estimating Allowance for Impaivment Losses on Receivables

The Company maintains an allowance for impairment losses at a level considered
adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The Company performs
regular review of the age and status of these accounts, designed to identify accounts with
objective evidence of impairment and provides these with the appropriate allowance for
impairment losses. The review is accomplished using a combination of specific and
collective assessment approaches, with the impairment losses being determined for each
risk grouping identified by the Company. The amount and timing of recorded expenses
for any period would differ if the Company made different Judgments or utilized different
methodologies. An increase in the allowance for impaitment losses would increase
recorded operating expenses and decrease current assets. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009,
allowance for impairment losses on receivables amounted to P108 million and P150
million, respectively. Receivables, net of allowance for impairment losses, amounted to
P1.075 billion and P988 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 6),
No allowance for impairment losses is necessary for the Company’s due from related
parties as of June 30, 2010 and 2009. ‘ -



Estimating Net Realizable Value of Inventories

- In determining the net realizable value of inventories, the Company considers inventory
obsolescence based on specific identification and as determined by management for
inventories estimated to be unsaleable in the future. The Company reduces the cost of
inventories to a realizable value at a level considered adequate to reflect market decline -
in value of the recorded inventory. The Company reviews, on a continuous basis, the
product movement, changes in consumer demands and introduction of new products to
identify inventories which are to be written down to net reafizable values. The net
realizable value of inventories amounted to P825 miilion and P704 million as of June 30,
2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 7). :

Lstimating Useful Lives of the Excess of Cost of Containers over Deposit Values

The excess of the acquisition costs of the returnable bottles and cases over their deposit
values is deferred and amortized over their estimated useful lives (EUL) principally
determined by their historical breakage and trippage. A reduction in the EUL of excess of
cost over deposit value would increase the recorded emortization and decrease
noncurrent assets. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, accumulated amortization of excess of
. tost over deposit values of returnable bottles and cases amounted to P3.735 billion and
P3.172 billion, respectively. The carrying amounts of bottles and cases amounted to
P2.325 billion and P2.441 billion as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively
(see Note 9), | | '

Estimating Allowance for Unusable Containers

An allowance for unusable containers is maintained based on specific identification and
as determined by management to cover bottles and shells that are no longer considered fit
for use in the business, obsolete or in excess of the Company’s needs. As of
June 30, 2010 and 2009, allowance for unusable containers amounted to P13 million and
- P17 million, respectively (see Note 9).

Estimating Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment -

The Company reviews annually the EUL of property, plant and equipment based on the
petiod over which the assets are expected to be available for use and updates those
‘expectations if actual results differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear
and technical or commercial obsolescence. It is possible that future financial performance
could be materially affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes in
the factors mentioned. A reduction in the EUL of property, plant and equipment would
increase the recorded depreciation and amortization expenses and decrease noncurrent
assets.

The EUL are as follows:

Number of Years

Buildings and leaschold improvementts 20 or term of the lease, -
: ‘ whichever is shorter
Machinery and other equipment 3-10
_Fumiture and fixtures 10

As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
- amounted to P3.244 billion and P3.156 billion, respectively (see Note 10).



Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Nonfinancial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an item
of bottles and cases, property, plant and equipment, investments in associates and other
noncurrent assets may be impaired. Determining the value of the assets, which requires
the determination of future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use
and ultimate disposition of such assets, requires the Company to make estimates and
assumptions that can materially affect the financial statements. Future events could cause
the Company to conclude that thesc assets are impajred. Any resulting impairment loss
could have material impact on the financial position and financial performance of the
Company.

The preparation of the estimated future cash flows involves Jjudgment and estimations.
While the Company believes that its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable,
significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the Company’s
assessment of the recoverable amounts and may lead to future additional impairment
charges. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, none of these impairment indicators exist on the
Company’s bottlcs and cases, property, plant and equipment, investments in associates
and other noncurrent assets. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the carrying amounts of
bottles and cases amounted to P2.325 billion and P2.44] billion, respectively
(see Note 9). As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the carrying amounts of property, plant and
cquipment amounted to P3.244 billion and P3.156 billion, respectively (see Note 10).
Investments in associates amounted to P530 million and P528 million as of June 30,2010
and 2009, respectively (see Note 8). '

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets _
The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting date
and reduces deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.,
The Company’s assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets is based on the
forecasted taxable income of the subsequent reporting periods. This forecast is based on
the Company’s past results and future expectations on revenues and expenses. The
Company has no unrecognized deferred tax assets as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, As of
June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Company has net deferred tax liabilities amounting to P392
million and P376 million, respectively (see Note 13).

Estimating Retirement Benefits Liability

The determination of the retirement benefits liability and retirement benefits cost is
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by the actuary in calculating such
amounts. Those assumptions include, among others, discount rates, expected returng on
plan assets and salary increase rate. Actual results .that differ from the Company’s
assumptions, subject to the 10% corridor test, are accumulated and amortized over future
periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligations
in such future periods. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Company has unrecognized net
actuarial gains amounting to P0.5 million and P7 million, respectively (see Note 24),



3. Significant Accounting Policies

The following explains the significant accounting policies which have been adopted in
the preparation of the financial statements:

Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial years
except for the following new standard, revised standard, improvements to standards,
amendments to standards and interpretation, which have been applied in preparing these
financial statements:

PFRS 8, Operating Segments, replaces PAS 14, Segment Reporting. This PFRS
adopts a management approach in reporting segment information, The information
reported would be that which management uses internally for evaluating the
performance of operating segments and allocating resources to those segments. k is
required for adoption only by entities whose debt or equity instruments are publicly
traded, or are in the process of filing with the SEC for the purposes of issuing any
class of instruments in a public market. The requirements of this new standard have
been included in the preparation of the Company’s financial statements,

Revised PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements (2007), introduces the term
totel comprehensive income, which represents changes in equity during a period
other than those changes resulting from transactions with owners jn their capacily as
owners, Total comprehensive income may be presented in either a single statement of
comprehensive income (effectively combining both the income statement and all
non-owner changes in equity in a single statement), or in an income statement and a
statement of comprehensive income. The adoption of this revised PAS 1 resulted in
the following: (a) change in the title from balance sheets to statements of financial
position; and (b) change in the presentation of changes in equity and of
comprehensive income - non-owner changes in equity are now presented in one
statement of comprehensive income, In addition, comparative information has been
re-presented in conformity with the revised standard.

Revised PAS 23, Borrowing Costs, removes the option to expense borrowing costs
and requires an entity to capitalize borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that
asset. The adoption of this revised standard did not have any significant impact on
the Company’s financial statements. 3

Improvemenis to PFRSs 2008 discuss 35 amendments and are divided into two parts:
&) Part I includes 24 amendments that result in accounting changes for presentation,
recognition or measurement purposes; and b) Part 11 includes 11 terminology or
editorial amendments that the International Accounting Standards Board (JASB)
capects to have either no or only minimal effects on accounting. The adoption of
these improvements did not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

Amendments to PFRS 1, Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments,
enhance disclosures over fair value measurements relating to financial instruments,
specifically in relation to disclosures over the inputs used in valuations techniques
and the uncertainty associated with such valuations. The amendments also improve
disclosures over liquidity risk to address current diversity in practice on how such -
disclosurc requirements are being interpreted and applied, proposing quarititative
disclosures based on how liquidity risk is managed and strengthening the relationship
between quantitative and qualitative liquidity risk disclosures. As allowed by the

-



amendments, in the first year of application, the Company does not need to provide
comparative information. Additional disclosures required in the amendments to
PFRS 7 are shown in Note 23 to the financial statements.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 17, Distributions of Noncash Assets to Owners,

~ provides guidance on the accounting for nofi-reciprocal distributions of non-cash

assets to owners acting in their capacity as owners. It also applies to distributions in
which the owners may elect to receive either the non-cash asset or a cash alternative.
The liability for the dividend payable is measured at the fair value of the assets to be
distributed. The adoption of this interpretation did not have any significant impact on

~ the Company’s financial statements.

New Standard, Revised Standard, Amendments to Standards. Improvements to Standards

and Interpretation Not Yet Adopted

The Company has not applied the following new standard, revised standard, amendments
to standards, improvements to standards and interpretation which have been approved but
are not yet effective as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010:

Improvements to PFRSs 2009 contain 15 amendments to 12 standards. In partieular
the amendments to PAS 17, Leases, may affect the classification of leases of land
and buildings, particularly in jurisdictions in which such leases often are for a long
period of time. The amendments are generally effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2010. These improvements and amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements upon its
adoption on July 1, 2010,

Amendment to PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Classification of
Rights Issues, which will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
February 1, 2010. The amendment permits rights, options or warrants to acquire a
fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount of any
currency to be classified as equity instruments provided the entity offers the rights,
options or warrants pro rata to all of its existing owners of the same class of its own
non-derivative equity instruments. The amendment is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements upon its adoption on
July 1, 2010,

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-19, Extinguishing Financial Lichilities with Equity
Instruments, which will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2010. The interpretation addresses issues in respect of the accounting by the
debtor in a debt for equity swap transaction. It clarifies that equity instruments
issued to a creditor to extinguish all or part of a financial liability in a debt for equity
swap are consideration paid in accordance with PAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, paragraph 41. This mtetpretation is not expected to
have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements upon its adoption
on July 1, 2010. '

Revised PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures (2009), which will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011, The revised standard amends
the definition of a related party and modifics certain related party disclosure
requirements for government-related entities. The revised standard is not expected to
have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements upon its adoption
onJuly 1, 2011. ' '



* PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which will be effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2013. This standard was issued as part of a wider project to
replace PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recogmition and Measurement. PERS ¢
retains but simplifies the mixed measurement mode] and establishes two primary
‘measurement categories for financial assets: amortized cost and fair value.” The
basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model and contractyal cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset. The guidance in PAS 39 on impairment of
financial asscts and hedge accounting continues to apply. The new standard is not
¢xpected to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements upon
its adoption on July 1, 2013.

Financial Instruments
Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financia) asset or a financial liability in
the statements of financial position when it becones a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. The Company determines the classification of itg financial assets and
liabilities on initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at each rcporting date. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of
financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is done using settlement
date accounting. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets require delivery of
assets within the time frame generally established by regulations in the market place.

Initial Recognmition of Financial Instruments. Financial instruments are recognized
initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration given or received, The
fair value of the consideration given or received is determined by reference to the
tansaction price or other market prices. If such market prices are not reliably
determinable, the fair value of the consideration is estimated as the sum of all future cash
payments or receipts, discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest for similar
instruments with similar maturities. The initia] measurement of financial instruments,
except for those designated at fair value through profit and loss (FVPL), includes
transaction cost. ‘

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS)
financial assets, FVPL financial assets, and loans and receivables. Financial liabilities are
classified as financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the investments are acquired and whether they are
quoted in an active market. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Company has no finaneial
assets and financial liabilities at FVPL, HTM investments and AFS financial assets;

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arc not
entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not designated
as AFS financial assets or FVPL financial assets. Loans and receivables are carried at
amortized cost, less impairment in value. Amortization is determined using the effective
interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in income when the loans and
receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through amortization process.

The Company’s receivables and due from related parties are included in this category.

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original

maturities of three months or less from dates of acquisition and that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.



Financial Liabilities. This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held for
trading or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability, These include
liabilities arising from operations or borrowings.

The financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently carried
at amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying the effective interest method
- of amortization (or accretion) for any related premium, discount and any directly
attributable transaction costs.

Included in this category are the Company’s notes payable and accounts payable and
accrued expenses that meet the above definition (other than liabilities covered by other
PFRS, such as income tax payable and accrued retirement cost). '

Derecognition of Financial Instruments. A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of
a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

* the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired;

* the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party
under & ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or

* the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
and either: (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial
asset; or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the financial asset, but has transferred control of the financial asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from a financial asset
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
financial asset nor transferred control of the financial asset, the financial asset is
recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the financial asset.
Continuing involvement that iskes the form of a guarantee over the transfer of the
financial asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the financial
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to

repay.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther
from the same lender on substantiatly different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such modification is treated as a derecognition of the carrying
value of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability at fair value, and any
resulting difference is recognized in profit or loss,

Day I Profi. When the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair
value of other observable current market transactions of the same instrument or based on
a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the -
Company recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day
1 profit™) in profit or loss. In cases when use is made of data which are not ohservable,
the difference between the transaction price and model value js only recognized in profit
ot loss when the inputs become observable or when the nstrument is derecognized. For
each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the
‘Day 17 profit amount. , : '

Offsetting Financial Instruments. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount presented in the statements of financial position when, and only when, the
Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

-8-



Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital

Capital stock and additional paid-in capital are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of shares arc recognized as a deduction from equity, net
of any tax effect. '

Inventories ,

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, The cost of
inventoties includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and
condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in process, cost includes an
appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity. Net
realizable value of inventories, other than sparc parts and supplies, is.the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
selling expenses. For the spare parts and supplies, net realizable value is the estimnated
selling price less costs to sell.

estments in Associates =

Associates are those entities in which the Company has sighificant influence, but not
control, over the financial and operating policies and which are neither subsidiaries nor
Joint ventures. The financial statements include the Company’s share of the total
recognized earnings and losses of associates on an equity accounted basis, from the date
that significant influence commences unti] the date that significant influence ceases. The
application of the equity method of accounting is based on the Company’s beneficial
inferest in the net profits and net assets. Distributions received from the associates
reduce the carrying amount of the investments. Income and expense resulting from
transactions between the Company and the associates are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in the associates. When the Company’s share of losses exceeds the cost of the
investment in an associate, the carrying amount of that interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses-is discontinued except to the extent that the Company has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Company’s investment includes goodwill that represents the excess of acquisition
cost of investment over the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the investee
companies at the date of acquisition, net of impairment in value, if any.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same teporting period as
the Company’s financial statements.

Bottles and Cases

Bottles and cases include returnable glass bottles and cases stated at deposit values and
the excess of the acquisition costs of retunable bottles and cases over their deposit
values. It also includes certain pallets acquired under finance lease. These assets are
deferred and amortized using the straight-line method over their EUL (5 years for .
returnable bottles and 7 years for cases and pallets) determined principally by their actual
historical breakage and trippage. An allowance is provided for excess, unusable and
obsolete returnable bottles and cases based on the specific identification method. '

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost (which comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs in bringing the asset to working condition and location for
Its ‘intended use) less accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment logses, if
any.



Subsequent costs that can be measured reliably are added to the carrying amount of the
asset when it is probable that fitture economic benefits associated with the asset will flow
to the Company. The cost of day-to-day servicing of an asset is recognized as expense in
the period in which it is incurred. :

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment under construction and is stated
at cost. This includes cost of construction and other direct costs, Construction in progress
is not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are completed and put into
operational use.

Depreciation commences once the assets become available for use. Depreciation is
computed on a straight-line basis over the EUL of the assets. Leasehold improvements
are amortized over the EUL of the improvements or the term of the lease, whichever is
shorter. ' :

The EUL and depreciation and amortization methods are reviewed at each reporting date
to ensure that the period and depreciation and amortization methods are consistent with
the expected pattern of economic benefits from those assets.

When an asset is disposed of, or is permanenfly withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected fromt its disposal, the cost and accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, if any, are removed from the accounts and any
resulting gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal is recognized in profit or
loss.

Impairment

Financial Assets :

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if
objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in tespect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is
calculated as the difference between its cartying amount, and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the ori ginal effective interest rate,

Individually, significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis.
The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit
tisk characteristics, All impainment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

Reversal of an impairment losg previously recognized is recorded when the decrease can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment event. Such reversal i
recognized in profit or loss, However, the increased carrying amount is only recognized
to the extent it does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the
impairment loss not been recognized. ‘

Nonfinancial Assets ‘ '

“The carrying amounts of the Company’s nonfinancial assets such as investments in
associates, bottles and cases, and property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated, ‘

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amout, ‘
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The recoverable amount of a nonfinancial asset is the greater of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs to sel] is the amount obtainable
from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length transaction. Vajye in use is the present value
of the fiture cash flows expected to be delivered from an asset or cash-generating unit, In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash
flows largely independent of those from other asscts, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. ‘

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized. Reversals of impajrment are recognized in profit or loss.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is ptobable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue from the sale of
goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns and discounts, Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable,
the associated costs and possible retumn of goods can be estimated reliably, and there is
no continuing involvement with the goods, Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
coincide with the delivery of the products to the customers.

Cost and Expense Recognition

Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss as they are incurred.

Advertisi;ig and Marketing Costs

Advertising and marketing costs are charged to operations in the ycar such costs are
incurred,

Finance Income and Expenses

Finance income comprises of interest income on bank deposits and money market
placements, dividend income and foreign cumrency gains. Interest income is recognized in
profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is
recognized on the date that the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on botrowings and foreign currency losses.
All finance expenses are recognized in profit or loss as they accrue.,

Leascs

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership is transferred
to the Company are classified as finance lease. Finance lease is capitalized at the
inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the capitalized asset is accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
‘constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognized in profit or loss.
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Leases which do not transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Associated costs such as maintenance and insurance are ¢xpensed as incurred, ‘

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized if
they are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset. The
capitalization of borrowing costs; (a) commences when the activities to prepare the assets
are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred; (b) is suspended
during extended periods in which active development, improvement and construction of
the assets are interrupted; and (¢) ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the assets are complete. These costs are amortized using the straight-line method
over the EUL of the related property, plant and equipment to which it is capitalized.
Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are recognized in profit or loss using the effective
interest method,

Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. It is recognized when the
Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
seftle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are revisited at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pretax ratc that reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money, and, where appropriate, the risks specific
to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed
urtless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Income Taxes ‘

Income tax expense is composed of current and deferred fax. Income tax expense is
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to iterms recognized directly
it equity or in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in equity or in
other comprehensive income,

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and tay,
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date. :

Deferred T ‘

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and lizbilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes and the carryforward tax benefits of the net
operating loss carryover (NOLCQ) and the excess of minimum corporate income tax
(MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT). The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying
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amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward tax benefits of NOLCO and MCIT c¢an be utilized.
Defetred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxcs levied by the same tax
‘authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or thejr tax assets and liabilities will be
realized simultaneousiy.

Retirernent Plan

The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirerment plan covering
substantiaily all of its regular and full time employees. Retirement costs are actuarially
determined using the projected unit credit method which reflect services rendered by
employees 1o the date of valuation and incorporates assumptions concerning employees’
projected salaries. Actuarial gains and losses that exceed 10% of the greater of the
present value of the Company’s defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan
. assets in the prior period are amortized over the expected average working lives of the

participating emplovees. ‘ :

The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and actuarial gains and losses not recognized reduced by past service cost not
yet recognized and the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be
settled directly. If such aggregate is negative, the asset is measured at the lower of such
aggregate or the apgregate of the cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past
service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions of the plan (the asset
ceiling test), -

The Company recognizes past service cost as an expense on a straight-line basiz over the
average vesting period. The Company recognizes past service cost immediately to the
extent that the bencfits are already vested following the introduction of, or changes to, the
plan.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is the Philippine peso.
Transactions in foreign currencies arc recorded in Philippine peso based on the prevailing
exchange rates at the date of the transactions. Foreign currency denominated monetary
-assets and liabilities are translated using the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting
date: Exchange gains or losses arising from translation of foreign curreticy denominated
itemns at rates different from those at which they were previously recorded are credited or
charged to current operations, ‘ '

. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net income by the weighted average number of
. common shares outstanding during the period, with retroactive adjustments for any stock
dividends declared.

Dilwed EFPS 'is calculated by dividing the net income attributable to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
year adjusted for the effects of any dilutive potential common shares,
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Dividends on Common Shares

Cash dividends on common shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity
when approved by the BOD of the Company. Dividends for the year that are approved
after the reporting date are dealt with as 3 nonadjusting event after the reporting date.

Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components. All operating
segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial
position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements.
Post year-end events that arc not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes fo the
financial statements when material.

4. Financial Risk Management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

" Credit Risk
* Liquidity Risk
.= Market Risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks,
the Company’s objectives, poiicies and processes for measuring and managing risks, and
the Company’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included
throughout these financial statements, mainly in Note 23 to the financial statements.

The main purpose of the Company’s dealings in financial instruments is to fund its
operations and capital cxpenditures.

The BOD has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the -
Company’s risk management framework. The BOD has established the Executive
Commirtee (EXCOM), which is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company’s risk management policies. The EXCOM identifies all issues affecting the
operations of the Company and reports regulatly to the BOD on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the
risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities, All risks
faced by the Company are incorporated in the aniual operating budget. Mitigating
strategies and procedures are also devised to address the risks that inevitably occur so as
not to affect the Company’s operations and forecasted results, The Company, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.
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The Audit Committee performs oversight over financial management and internal
control, specifically in the areas of managing credit, liquidity, market and other risks of
the Company. The Audit Committee directly interfaces with the internal audit function,
which undertakes reviews of risk management controls and procedures and ensures the
integrity of internal controf activities which affect the financial management system of
the Company. The results of procedures performed by Internal Audit are reported to the
Aundit Committee, ‘

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk of loss the Company would incur if credit customers and
counterparties fail to perform their contractual obligations, The Company’s credit risk
arises principally from the Company’s trade receivables.

- The Plant Credit Committees have established a credit policy under which each new
customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness before standard credit terms and
conditions are granted. The Compary’s review includes the requirements of updated
credit application documents, credit verifications through confirmation that there are no
credit violations and that the account is not included in the negative list, and analyses of
financial performance to ensure credit capacity. Credit limits are established for each
customer, which serve as the maximum open amount at which they are allowed. to
purchase on credit, provided that credit terms and conditions are observed.

The credit limit and status of each cugtomer’s account are first checked before processing
a credit transaction. Customers that fail to meet the Company’s conditions in the credit
checking process may transact with the Company only on cash basis.

It is the Company’s policy to conduct an annual credit review through identification and
summarization of under-performing customers and review and validation of credit
- violation reports. Based on the summary, the Plant Credit Committees may upgrade,
downgrade, suspond and cancel credit lines.

Most of the Company’s customners have been transacting with the Company for several
years, and Josses have occurred from time to time. Customer credit risks are monitored
through annual credit reviews conducted on a per plant basis. Results of credit reviews
are grouped and summarized according to credit characteristics, such as geographic
location, aging profile and credit violations. Historically, credit violations have been
attributable to bounced checks, and denied, fictitious or absconded credit accounts.

Collateral sccurities are required for credit limit applications that exceed certain
thresholds (see Note 23). The Company has policies for acceptable collateral securities
that may be presented upon submission of credit applications.

Liquidiry Risk : ‘

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial
obligations as they fall dye. The Company manages liquidity risk by forecasting
projected cash flows and maintaining a balance between. continuity of funding and
flexibility. Treasury controls and procedures are in place to ensure that sufficient cash is
maintained to cover daily operational and working capital requirements, as well as capital
expenditures and debt service payments. Management closely monitors the Company’s
future and contingent obligations and sets up required cash reserves as necessary in
accordance with internal requirements.
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In addition, the Company has the following credit facilities:

* The total commitment as of Time 30, 2010 and 2009 under the line of credit is

‘ P2.960 billion and P2,900 billion, respectively, of which the Company had

drawn P283 million and P219 million, respectively, under letters of credit and

short-term loans. All facilities under the omnibus line bear interest at floating
rates consisting of a margin over current Philippine treasury rates; and

* P725 million and P580 million domestic bills purchased line, which were
available as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Market Risk ,

Market tisk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as commodity prices, foreign
e¢xchange rates, interest rates and other market prices will affect the Company’s income
or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is t0 manage and contro]l market risk exposures - within acceptable
parameters, while optimizing the return.

The Company is subject to various market risks, including risks from changes in
commodity prices, interest rates and currency exchange rates,

Commodiry Prices

The risk from commodity price changes relates to the Company’s ability to recover
higher product costs through price increases to customers, which may be [imited due to
the competitive pricing environment that exists in the Philippine beverage market and the
willingness of consumers to purchase the same volume of beverages at higher prices. The
Company’s most significant commodity exposure is to the Philippine sugar price.

The Compary minimizes its exposure to risks in changes in commodity prices by
entering inio contracts with suppliers with duration ranging from six months to one year;
with fixed volume commitment for the contract duration; and with stipulation for price
adjustments depending on market prices, The Company has outstanding purchase
commifment amounting to P1.330 billion as of June 30, 2010. The EXCOM considered
the exposure to commodity price risk to be insignificant,

Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s exposure to the risk for changes in market interest rate relates primarily
to its debt obligations with variable interest rates. The Treasury Department, due to its
competencies of managing debt obligations, transacts with. creditors to ensure the most
advantageous terms and to reduce exposure to tisk of changes in market interest rate.

Foreign Currency Risk _

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on purchases that are denominated in
currencies other than the Philippine peso, mostly in U.5. dollar and EURO. In respect of
monetary assets and liabilities held in currencies other than the Philippine peso, the
Company ensures that its exposure i kept to an acceptable Jevel, by maintaining short-
term cash placements in U.S. dollar and buying foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances. The EXCOM considered the exposure to
foreign turrency risk to be insignificant, Further, the Company does not hold any
investment in foreign securities as of June 30, 2010 and 2009,
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Capital Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to increase the value of
sharcholders® investment and maintain reasonable growth by applying free cash flow to
selective investments that would further the Company’s product and geographic
diversification. The Company sets strategies with the objective of establishing a versatile
and resourcefu] financial management and capital structure,

The Chief Financial Officer has overall responsibility for monitoring of capital in
proportion to risk. Profiles for capital ratios are set in the light of changes in the
Company’s external environment and the risks underlying the Company’s business
operations and industry.

The Company defines capital as total cquity shown in the statements of financial
position.

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the
year and the Company is not subject to externally-imposed capital requirements,

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

: _ 2010 2009
Cash on hand and in banks P253,613 P210,308
_Short-term investments 390,000 202,780
P643,613 P413,088

Cash in banks eams interest at the respective bank deposit rates, Short-term investments .
are made for varying petiods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Company and earn interest at the respective short-term investment
rates.

The Company’s exposures to interest rate risk and sensitivity analyses are disclosed in
Note 23. '

6. Recelvables

Receivables consist of:

Note \ 2010 2009

Trade 23 P1,124,733 P1,081,531
Others 23 59,176 36,731
1,183,909 1,138,262

_Less allowance for impairment losses 108,489 150,297
P1,075,420 P987,965

Trade receivables are noninterest-bearing and are generally on a 30 to 60 days term.
Other receivables consist mainly of receivables from employees, freight and instrance
claims,
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The movements in allowance for impairment losses on receivables are as follows:

2019 2009
Trade Others Trade  Others

Balance at beginning of vear P125,312 . P24,785 P75.226 P26,856
Impairment losses (recovery on :

impairment lossés) recognized during

the vear : (10,638) (5,017) 53,118 304
Write-offs during the year (23,412)  (2,741)  (2.832) (2,375)
Balance at end of year o P31,462 P17,027 P125,512 P24,785

The Company’s exposure to credit risk related to trade and other receivables is disclosed
in Note 23.

7. Inventorjes

Inventories consist of:

Nate 2010 2009

Finished goods: 11

Af cost P387,887 P325,527

At net realizable value 383,879 322,427
Work in process: 11

At cost 14,482 9,475

At net realizable value ‘ 14,482 9,475
Raw and packaging materials: 11

At cost 337,730 286,956

At net realizable value . 325,824 272,242
Spare parts and supplies:

At cost ‘ 106,383 99,935

At net realizable valye ) 101,582 90,819
Total inventories at lower of cost or net

realizable value P825.467 P703,963

Under the terms of agreements covering liabilities under trust receipts, certain inventories
have been released to the Company in trust for certain local banks. The Company is
accountable to these banks for the trusted inventories (see Note 11).

Write-down of inventories to net realizable value amounted to P6 miilion and
P24 million in 2010 and 2009, respectively, and is included as part of “Cost of Goods
Sold” account in the statements of comprehensive income.

The Company’s notes payable are secured by mortgage trust indentures on various asgets,
which include P284 million of inventories as of June 30, 2009,
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8. Investments in Assoc;iates

Investments in associates consist of*

Percentage (%)
of Ownership :
2010 2009 2010 2009
Acquisition gost: : |
Nadeco Realty Corporation {(NRC) 0%  40%  P232,508  P232.508
Nadeco Holdings Corporation {(NHC) 40% 40 132 . 132
232,640 232,640
Effect of dilution of ownership in NRC - (1,018) (1,018)
231,622 231,622
Accumulated equity in net earnings: ‘
Balance at beginning of year o 296,101 293,880
Equity in net earnings for the year 2,265 2,221
Balance at end of year - 298,366 296,101

P529.988 . P327,723

The financial reporting date of NRC and NHC is June 30,

As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the undistributed earnings of the associates included in the
Company’s retained earnings amounting to P298 million and P296 million, respectively,
are not available for distribution to stockholders unless declared by the associates.

Summarized financial information pertaining to the Company’s associates:

As of June 30, 2010

Assets  Liabilities ‘Equity Revenues  Netf Income

NRC F79%,456 PZ78,256 521,200 P10,379 P2,131

NHC (consolidated) 799,957 278,164 521,793 10,570 2,477
As of June 30, 2009

Assets  Liabilities Equity Revenues  Net Income

NRC P730,118 P211,048 P319.070 P10,580 P1,994

NHC {consolidated) 730,622 211,305 519317 10,581 2377
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9. Bottles and Cases
Bottles and cases consist oft

Note 2610 2009

Deposit values of retirrable bottles and
cases on hand - net of allowance for
unusable containers of P13,128 in 2010
and P16,714 in 2009 17 P294.659 P355,658
Excess of cost over deposit values of ‘
returnable bottles and cases - net of ‘ -
accumlated amortization®* : 11 2,014,982 2,078,068

- 2,309,641 2,433,726
Bottles and shells in transit ‘ : 15,648 7472

P2,325,289 PZ,441,198

* This inciudes pallets whder finance loase with net book value of P99 million and PES million as of June 30, 2010 and
2009, respectively. ’

The rollforward of excess of cost over deposit values of returnable bottles and cases is as

follows:
2010 2009

Gross carrying amount™;
Balance at beginning of year 15,250,140 P4,317,702
Additions 499,939 932,438
Balance at the end of year 5,750,079 5,250,140
Accumulated amortization':
Balance at beginning of year 3,172,072 2,682,212 .
Amortization for the year 564,021 494,091
Other movemments . (996) (4,231)
Balance at the end of year 3,735,097 3,172,072
Carrying amount’:

~ Balance at end of year P2,014,982 P2.078.068

* This includes pallets under finance lease of P179 millien and PES million as of June 30, 2014 and 2009, respectively,
with related accurnulated athortization ameunting to P21 million -and P4 miliion as of June 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, and net book value of P99 million and PRS million as of lune 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively,

A portion of the Company’s bottles and -cases with a total collateral value of P4.000

billion are mortgaged and placed in trust under two mortgage trust indentures to secyre
the Company’s outstanding notes payable as of June 30, 2009 (see Note 11}
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10. Property, Plant and Equipment

The movements in this account are as follows:

‘ Buildings and
Machinery and Leasehofd Construction Furniture

Other Equipment Improvements  in Progress  snd Fixtures Total
Gross carrying anount:
July 1, 2008 P6,290 757 F638,272 F212.236 P26,608 FP7.187.873
Additions 715,130 116,021 - 2,713 833 864
Disposals/write-offs {92,842) (11,126} - (162)  (104,130)
Transfers 179,483 (497) {178.8245 {67) -
June 30, 2009/July 1. 2009 1.062 528 762,675 33312 29,092 7817607
Additions 372,010 75,343 230,575 1,815 679,743
Disposals/\a\frite-oﬁ's (113.510) (70) - (305) (113885
June 30, 2016 7351028 837,948 263,587 30,602 P3,483,465
Accampulated depreciation

and amortization;

July 1, 2008 3,893,794 - 411,598 - 21022 4326414
Depreciation and amortization 498218 36497 - 1,078 535,793
Disposals/write-offs {92,447) ) (7,994) - (180 (100.601)
June 30, 2009/July 1, 2009 4,290 565 440,101 - 21,940 4,761 606
Depreciation and amortization 534,646 47375 - . 1,272 583,203
Disposals/write-offs . (104.741) (35 - (305) {105,081
June 30, 2010 ‘ 4,729470 , 487,44] - 22,907 5239818
Carrying amount; ‘ ‘
June 30, 2009 F2,792 963 F322,574 Fi3312 ©P7,132 P3,156,001

June 30, 2010 P2.621,558 ' P350,507 PZG3.837 P7,695 P3.243,647

A substantial portion of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and certain parcels
of land owned by NRC with a total collateral value of P1.400 billion as of June 30, 2000
is mortgaged and placed in trust under two mortgage trust indentures to secure the
Company’s outstanding notes payable as of June 30, 2009 (see Notes 11 and 14).

Change in EUL of Marketing Equipment :

During the fiscal year 2009, the Company reassessed” the EUL of its marketing
equipment. The said equipment, which is included as part of property, plant and
equipment under “Machinery and Other Equipment” account, with previous EUL of five
years is estimated to remain in operations for seven years from the date of purchase, The
effect of change in depreciation expense is as follows:

2009 2010 2011 2012 Beyond 2012

Increase (decrease) in ,
~ depreciation expense (P91,548)  (P70,604)  (P48,103)  (P19,312) P229,567

The Company has ongoing definite corporate expansion projects or programs approved
by the BOD. As a result of this expansion program, the Company spent for property,
plant and equipment as well as bottles and shells amounting to P1.127 billion in 2019,
P1.802 billion in 2009 and P1.981 billion in 2008, doubling the capital expenditures in
previous years. To this date, the Company continues to invest in major capital
expenditures in order to complete the remaining expansion projects lined up,
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11, Notes Payable

This account represents short-term loans from various local banks which are payable in
lump sum on their respective maturity dates up to November 14, 2009, Interest rates on
the said loans are repriced monthly based on negotiated rates or prevailing market rates.
The short-term loans are secured by mortgage trust indentures on inventories, bottles and
cases, and real estate, which include certain restrictions and requirements. In fiscal year
2010, the said loans were fully settled. '

Interest rates range from 6.00% to 6.50% for 2009 and 6.00% to 6.25% for 2008. Interest
expense on notes payable recognized in profit or loss amounted to P3 million, P22
million and P36 million for 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Information about the Company’s exposures to interest rate risk and liquidity risk is
disciosed in Note 23.

12. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of:

Note 20101 2009
Trade payables ‘ 7, 4 P1,468,984 P1,228,174
Accrued advertising and marketing 186,420 147,319
Accrued retirement cost - current 24 87.875 82,324
Non-trade payables 77,840 104,503
_Other accrued expenses 27 591,751 506,584

P2,412.870 P2,068,906

The Company’s other accrued expenses consist mainly of accruals for salaries and
wages, other employee benefits, utilities and other operating expenses, and current
portion of obligations under finance lease,

The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk related 10 trade and other payables is disclosed
in Note 23,

13. Income Taxes

The components of the income tax expense are as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Current tax expense and final taxes on ‘ '
interest income: ‘
Current period ' P299.628 P324,832 P81,302
Prior period - - (171,236)

Deferred tax expense from
origination and reversal of . ‘
temporary differences and others _ 16,164 . 36,907 330,156

P315,792 P381.739  P240,222
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‘Deferred tax liabilities - net are attributable to the following:

| ‘ 2010 2009
Allowance for probable losses in values of bottles
and cages, impairment losses, inventory '
obsolescence and other provisions P93,480 P80,712
Accrual for retirement costs 63,484 64,246
Past service cost 35,270 34,079
192,234 179,037
Bottles and cases (414,853) (396,075)
Marketing equipment (169,268) (158,685)
(584,121) (554,760)
(P391,387) (P375,723)

In 2009, the Company applied the MCIT (incurred in 2008) amounting to P29 million as

tax credit against its RCIT.

In 2008, the Company received a ruling from the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)
which allowed acceleration of deductions on marketing equipment and botties and cases.

The reconciliation of the income tax expense computed at the statutory income tax rate to
the income tax expense shown in the statements of comprehensive income is as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Income before income tax P1,054,468 P1,181.429 P1,000,919
Tax rate at 30% in 2010, 32.5% in .
2009 and 35% in 2008 P316,340 P383,964 P350,322
Additions to (reductions in) income
tax resulting from the tax effects of:
Nondeductible expenses 2,840 1,704 2,757
Interest income subjected to final tax (2,708) (4,358) (6,565)
Equity in net eamings of associates - (638) - {722) (7,010)
Change in tax rate - 1,192 (51,607)
‘Transaction cost charged to equity - - (48,204)
Others - ‘ (41) 529
‘ P315,792 P381,739 P240,222

On May 24, 2005, RepuBlic Act No. 9337 entitled “An Act Amending the National
Internal Revenue Code, as Amendcd, with Salient Features” (Act), was passed into a law
effective November 1, 2005. The Act includes the following significant revisions to the,

rules of taxation, among others:

a. Reduction in the corporate income tax rate from 35% to 30% starting January 1, 2009

and onwards; and

b. Reduction in the allowable deduction of interest expense from 42% to 33% of

interest income subject to final tax beginning January 1, 2009,
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14. Related Party Transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has ability to control, directly or
indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, the other party of exercisc significant
influence over the other party in making the financial and operating decisions. Such-
relationship also exists between and/or among entities which are under common control
with the reporting enterprises, or between and/or among the reporting enterprises and
their key management personnel, directors, or its stockholders,

The Company has significant related party transactions which are summarized as
follows:

a. The Company has Exclusive Bottling Agrecements with PepsiCo, Inc. (“PepsiCo™),
stockholder, which has 29.49% beneficial interest in the Company, up to year 2017
and Pepsi Lipton International Limited (“Pepsi Lipton™), a joint venture of PepsiCo
and Unilever N.V.,, up to year 2012. Under the agreements, the Company is
authorized to bottle, sell and distribute Pepsi and Lipton beverage products in the
Philippines. In addition, PepsiCo and Pepsi Lipton shall supply the Company with
the main raw materials (concentrates) in the production of these beverage products
and share in the funding of certain marketing programs. The agreements may be
renewed by mutual agreement between the parties. Under the agreements, PepsiCo
and Pepsi Lipten have the right to terminate the contracts under certain conditions,
including failure to comply with terms and conditions of the appointment subject to
written notice and rectification period, change of ownership control of the Company,
change of ownership control of an .entity which controls the Company,
discontinuance of bottling beverages for 30 consecutive days, occurrence of certain
events leading to the Company’s insolvency ot bankruptcy, change in management
and control of the business, among others. Total net purchases from PepsiCo,
amounted to P2.944 billion, P2.578 billion and P2.416 billion for the vears ended
June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Total purchases from Pepsi Lipton for
the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 amounted to P99 million, P81 million
and P94 million, respectively.

The Company has a cooperative advertising and marketing program with PepsiCo
and Pepsi Lipton that scts forth the agreed advertising and marketing activities and
participation arrangement during the years covered by the bottling agreements. In
certain instances, the Company pays for the said expenses and claims reimbursement
from PepsiCo. For the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Company
incurred ‘marketing expenses amounting to P502 million, P521 million and P&63
million, respectively. The Company’s outstanding reccivable from PepsiCo included
under “Due from related parties™ account in the statements of financial position,
which are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and payable on demand amounted to P5
million and P27 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

b. On April 11, 2007, the Company entered into a Performance Agreement with
PepsiCo to meet certain marketing and investment levels from 2007 to 2017, as
tequired by the bottling agreement with PepsiCo. The agreement requires the
Company to: (1) spend a specified percentage with a minimum amount for the
beverage products; (2) make certain investments based on a minimum percentage of .
the Company’s sales to expand the Company’s manufacturing capacity; (3) invest in
a minimum number of coolers per year to suppoit distribution expansion; and
(4) expand the Company’s distribution capabilities in terms of the number of active
routes, the number of new routes and the number of trucks used for distribution

support,
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¢. Certain parcels of land properties of NRC, an associate, were mortgaged to secure a
portion of the Company’s notes payable. The Company leases these parcels of land
where some of its bottling plants are located. Lease expenses recoghized amounted to
P10 million, P10 million and P11 million for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009
and 2008, respectively, The Company has advances to NRC amounting to P3§
million which bear interest at a fixed rate of 10% pet annum and which are unsecured
and payable on demand. The Company also has outstanding net receivables from
NRC, amounting to P119 million and P50 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, which are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and payable on demand. The
advances and receivables are included under “Due from related patties” account in
the statements of financial position. :

The Company has outstanding working ~capital advances to NHC, an associate,
amounting to P3 million and P2 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively,
and which are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and payabie on demand. The advances
are included under “Due from related parties” account in the statements of financial

position.

In addition to their salaries, the Company also provides noncash benefits to key
management personnel and contribtes to a defined benefit retirement plan on their

behalf.

The compensation and benefits of key management personnel are as follows:

2008

2010 2009
Short-term employee benefits 87,114 P70,721 P78.304
Post-employment bencfits 3,159 3,754 3721
' Po0,273 FP74,475 P82,025
15. Net Sales
Net gales consist of:
2010 2009 2008
Gross sales P18,789,186  P16,600,329  P15,283,095
Less sales returns and discounts 2,660,341 2,368,284 2,302,209
P16,128,845 P14,232,045 P12,980,386
16, Cost of Goods Sold
Cost of goods sold consists of*
Note 2010 2009 2008
Materials and supplies used 14 P9,073,587 P7,547,548 P6,617,972
Delivery and freight | 862,493 769,511 713,597
Depreciation and amortization 19 841,738 754,666 654,400
Rental and utilities 14 27 295,250 268,318 261,934
Personnel expenses 20, 24 289,491 249 359 258,737
Others 555,344 453,336 367,466
P11,917,903 P10,042,738 P3,874,106
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17. Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consist of:

2010

Note 2009 2008
Distribution P502,806 P470,626 P438,582
Persotinel expenses 20, 24 - 415,835 408,061 434,600
Delivery and freight 286,638 . 230,101 193,776
Depreciation 19 271,359 233,383 269,348
Rental and utilities 14,27 124,876 122,723 131,703
Others 403,436 437,680 362,300
P2,004,950  P1,902,574  P1,830,309
18. General and Administrative Expenses
General and administrative expenses consist of:
Note 2010 2009 2008
Personnel expenses 20, 24 P333,132 P291,069 P344.817
Outside services 118,026 106,881 73,883
Rental and utilitics 14,27 100,790 90,154 88,838
(Others 19 156,144 132,746 140,542
P708,092 P620,850 648,080
19. Depreciation and Amortization B
Depreciation and amortization are distributed as follows:
Nole 2010 2009 2008
Cost of goods sold 16 P841,738 P754,666 P654,400
Selling and distribution 17 271,359 233,383 269,348
General and administrative 18 34,217 37,775 45,863
' P1,147,314  P1.025824 P969,611
20. Personnel Expenses
Note 2010 2009 2008
Salaries and wages P984,998 = P913,698 P970,446
Retirement cost 24 53,460 34,791 67,708
1,038,458 F948,480  P1,038,154
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'Th‘e above amounts are distributed as follows:

Note 2010 2009 2008

Cost of goods sold 16 P189,491 P249,359 P258,737

Selling and distribution 17 415,835 408,061 434,600

General and‘administrative I8 333,132 . 291,069 344,817

P1,038,458 948,480  P1,038,154

21. Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) "
Basic EPS is computed as follows:

2010 2009 2008

Net income (a) P738,676 P799,690 P760,697

Issued shares at beginning of the year  3,693,772,279 3,693,772,279 3,312,989,386

Effect of shares issued during the year - - 158,659,539
Weighted average number of shares

outstanding (b) 3,693,772,279 3,693,772,279 3,471,648,925

Basic/Diluted EPS (a/b) P0.20 P0.22 P0.22

As of June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Company has no dilutive equity instruments.

22. Segment Information

As discussed in Note 1, the Company is engaged in the manufacture, sales and
distribution of CSD and NCB. The Company’s main products under its C5D category
include brands Pepsi-Cola, 7TUp, Mountain Dew and Mirinda. The NCB brand category
includes Gatorade, Tropicana/Twister, Lipton and the recently introduced Sting energy
drink and Propel fitness water.

The Company operates under two (2) reportable operating segments, the CSD and NCB.

categories,

Analysis of financial information by operating segment is as follows:

Carbonated Soft Drinks Noncarbonated Beverapes

_Combined

{In G00,C00's) 2010 2008 2008 210 2009 2008 W0 2009 2008
et Salea
External sales F13,560 12,347 P12,390  P53229 P4,053  P2,893  PI1878%9 Pl16600 P152%3
Sales diseounts and returns {2,051) (1,953 (1.985) {569} (415 (317 (26600 (2,368) {2,300)
Net sales P11,469 P10.594 P1D.403 P4,660 P3638  PR576  P1§,029  P1423}  PI2981
Result o
Segment result* P2,594 P3.118  P3,.292 F1,217 F1,071 PE13 F4,21] F4,18% P4,107
Unallgcated expenses (3,215) (3,044) (3,143)
Interzst and financing

ExpESES (2} (22) (363
Equity in net eamings of

agsociates 2 2 it
Interes! incomne 13 17 23
Other income - net 46 a0 L]
Income ik Bxpense (316) (382) (240
Net intomg . F73% PEOO P61

Farward
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Carbonated Soft Drinks Nooearbimafed Beverapes Combined

.__{In 00,0085} 20110 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
Other Information**
Segment assets PB,327 P7.,890 P7,3t9
Investraznts In associates . 430 528 526
Other _nopcurrent assers 108 144 138
Combined total assets 8,966 P8,562 P7.983
Segment linbilitica : F2,620 PL270 F2,266
Inceme tax payable 59 156 -
Notes payable ) - 30 147
Deferred tax liabilities - nat 392 376 200
- Combined tetal linbilitics ‘ P3071 2852  P2,70%
Capital expenditursc . F1,127 PL,802 1,981
[epreciation and
smortization of and
bottlies and shells and
property, plant and
cquipment 1,147 1,026 70

Noncash items other than
depreciation and
pmaortization : % H3 22

* Segment result is the difference between net sales and segment expenses. Segment expenses are allocated based on the percantge of
cach reportable segment™s net sales over total net sules, ‘

** Segment asszts and lisbilities relate to balances as of June 30, 2010 and 2009,
There were no intersegment sales recognized between the two reportable segments.

The Company uses its assets and incurs liabilities to produce both carbonated soft drinks
and non-carbonated beverages, hence, the assets and liabilities are not directly
attributable to a segment and cannot be allocated into each segment on a reasonable
basis. ‘ ‘

Major Customey
The Company does not have any single external customer from which sales revenue
- generated amounted to 10% or more of the net sales.

23. Financial Instruments

Credit Risk
The carrying amounts of the financial asscts represent the Company’s maximum credit
¢xposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30 is as follows:

2010 2009
Receivables - net P1,0875420 - P987,965
Cash in banks and cash equivalents 471,606 273,673
Due from related parties ‘ 165,085 116,454

P1,712,111 . P1,378,092

The aging of trade receivables is as follows:

. June 30, 2010 June 30, 2009
Gross Amount . Impairment  Gross Amount  [mpairment
Current P695,028 P - P649,654 P -
Past due 1-30 days 271,680 - 229,850 -
Past due 31-60 days 43,540 - 31,808 -
More than 60 days - 114,485 91,462 150,219 125,512

P1,124,733 P91,462 P1,081,531 P125,512
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Various collateral securities such as bank guarantees, time deposits, surety bonds, real
estate and/or chattel mortgages are held by the Company for trade receivables exceeding
certain amounts. The aggregate fair market value of these collateral securities amounted
to P149 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009,

As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Company assessed that the amounts due from related
partics are not impaired and are collectible in full. In addition, other receivables are not
impaired and are collectible, except for P17 million and P25 million for which an
allowance was provided as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. -

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Company. Cash in banks
and cash equivalents are of high grade quality. Of the total receivables and due from
related parties as of June 20, 2010 and 2009 which are neither past due nor impaired,
99.2% is of high grade quality and the balance is of standard quality.

The credit qualities of financial assets are determined as follows:

* Cash in banks and cash equivalents are based on the credit standing or rating of
the counterparty.

* Total receivables and due from related parties are based on a combination of
credit standing or rating of the counterparty, historical expericnce and specific
and collective credit risk assessment. High grade quality financial assets are
those assessed as having minimal credit risk, otherwise they are of standard

quality.
Liquidj isk .
The table summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets and
financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted amounts:

As of June 30, 2010
More than
Carrying Contractual One year one year to
amaunt cash flow or Jess five years
Financial assets; ‘
Cash and cash equivalents P643,613 P643,613 P643,613 P -
Recejvables - nat : 1,075,420 1,075,420 1,075 420 ‘ -
Due from related parties 165,085 165,085 165,085 -
. P1,884,118 F1,884,118 P1,584,118 F -
Financial Iiabiiities:
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses 2,240,450 P2,240,450 P2,240,450 P -
Other noncurrent liabilities . £9,284 84,558 - 84.558
F1,309,734 P2,325,008 " P1,240,450 P54,558
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As of June 30, 2009

Mote than
Carrying Contractua] One year one year to
amount cash flow or less five vears
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents P413,088 P413,088 P413,08% )
Receivables - net : 987.965 087,365 987,955 -
Due from related parties 116,454 116,454 116,454 -
P1,517,507 P1,517,507 F1,517,507 P -
Financial liabilitics: ‘
Notes payable P50,000 P50,124 P50,124 P -
Accounts payable and accrued ‘ "
eXpenses ' 1,.977.426 1,977,426 1,977.426 u
Other nongurrent labilities 69,474 91477 - 91,477
P2.096,900 PL2119,027 - P2,027.530 Bo1,477

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur
significantly carlier, or at significantly different amounts.

Financial Assets Used for Managing Liquidity Risk

The Company considers expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing and
managing liquidity risk. To manage its liquidity risk, the Company forecasts cash flows
from operations for the next six months which will result in additional available cash
resources and enable the Company to meet its expected cash outflow requirements.

Interest Rate Risk

The interest rates profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as
follows:

| 2010 2009
Financial assets : ' P390,000 P222.553
_Financial liabilities - (50,000)
P390,000 P172,553

Sensitivity Analysis

A 2% increase in interest rates would have increased equity and profits for the years
ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 by P6 million, P3 million and P4 million,
respectively. '

A 2% decrease in interest rates for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 would
have had the equal but opposite effect, on the basis that all other variables remain
constant,

The interest rate risk’s sensitivity analysis is bascd on interest rate variance that the
Comnpany considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting date,

Fair Values : ‘

The fair valucs of the financial assets and liabilities approximate the carrying amounts
due ta the short-term nature of these financial instruments and the interest rates that they
Carry approximate interest rates for cotnparable instruments in the market.
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24, Retirement Plan

The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering
substantially all of its regular and full time employees. The Company has a Retirernent
Committee that sets the policies for the plan and has appointed twa Philippine banks as
trustees 10 manage the retirement fund pursuant to the plan. Annual cost is determined
using the projected unit credit method. The Company’s latest actuarial valuation date is
June 30, 2010. The actuarial valuation is made on an annual basis.

The reconciliation of the assets and liabilities recognized in the statements of financial
position is shown below:

2010 2009
Present value of defined benefit obligation P425,945 F382,590
Fair value of plan assets 214,844 175,708
Unfunded obligations 211,101 206,882
Unrecognized net actuarial gains 512 7,272
Accrued retirement cost P211,613 P214,154

The current portion of accrued retirement cost included under “Accounts payable and
accrued expense” account in the statements of financial position amounted to PS8 million -
and P82 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, while the noncurrent portion
included under “Other noncurrent liabilities” account in the statements of financial
position amounted to P139 million and P131 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. : '

The components of retirement cost recognized in profit or loss are as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Interest cost P34.052 P32 742 P33,649
Current service cost 29,022 26,619 35,469
Expected return on plan assets (9,614) (20,905) (15,387)
Past service cost - - 13,977
Amortization of unrecognized net
___actuarial gain - (3.665) -
Net retirement cost | P53,460 P34,791 P67,708
Actual return on plan assets | P2,892 P12,363 P3,725

The Company’s retirement cost is allocated between “Cost of Goods Sold” account in the
statements of comprehensive income, which amounted to P5 million, Pé million and P14
millien in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and “Qperating Expenses” account in the
statements of comprehensive income which amounted to P48 million, P28 million and
P33 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as fol]oﬁs:

2010 2009
Balance at beginning of year P382,590 P333,886
Interest cost 34,052 32,742
Current service cost ' 29,022 26,619
-Actuarial loss o .38 63,694
. Benefits paid (19,757) (76,351)
Balance at end of year ‘ P425,945 P382,590
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are shown below:
2010 2009
Balance at beginning of year P175,708 P195,117
Contributions 56,000 48,000
Expected retum 9,614 20,905
Net actnarial loss (6,721) (11,963)
Benefits paid . (19,757) (76,351)
Balance at end of year P214.844 P175,708

Principal actuarial assumptions used in determining retirement cost at reporting date
(expressed as weighted averages) are as follows:

Annual rates 2010 2009
Discount rate 8.75% 9.25%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 4.50% 4.75%
_Rate of future salary increase 5.00% 5.00%

The Company’s plan assets consist of 99% investment in fixed income securities and 1%
investments in shares of stocks both in 2010 and 2009.

The overall expected return on plan assets is based on the portfolio as a whole and not on
the sum of the returns on individual asset categories. The return is based exclusively on
the historical returns, without adjustments,

The historical information of the amounts is as follows:

‘ 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Present value of the defined _

benefit obligation P425.945 P382,550 P333,886 P366,031  P409,055
Fair value of plan assets 214,844 175,708 195,117 148,454 111,472
Deficit in the plan (211,101} (206.882) (138,769) (217,577) (297,583)
Experience adjustments on- .

plan liabilities loss (gain) {20,179 20,706 {5,603) (42,167) -
Experience adjustments on

plan aszets loss (11,721} {11,963) (11,062} (19,244 -

The Company’s expected contribution to the plan for the fiscal year 2011 is P88 million,
Any future contribution to the plan is determined taking into account the cash flow and
financial condition as of the date of intended date of contribution as well as other factors
+ as the Company may consider relevant. ‘
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25. Capital Stock

Thie account congists of:

2010 2009 ‘ 2008
Shares  Amount Shares _ Amount Shares  Amount
Authorized - P15 ,
par value 5,000,000,000 P750,000  5,000,000,000 P750,000  5,000,000,000 P750,000
Tssued and outstanding:
Balance at beginning of
year 3,603,772,279  P534.066 3,603,772279  P554,066  3,312,989,386 FA496,948
Iesuianes during the year - - - - 30,732,893 57,118

Balance at end of year 3,693,772,279 P354,066 3,693,772,279  P4i34,066 3,693,772279 P354,066

On February 1, 2008, the Company’s initial public offering of 1,142,348,680 shares at
P3.50 per share culminated with the listing and trading of its shares of stocks under the
First Board of the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. OF the total shares offered,
380,782,893 shares pertain to the primary offering, which resulted in an increase in
capital siock amounting to P57 million and additional paid-in capital of P1.2 billion, net
of P138 million transaction cost that is accounted for as a reduction in equity.

The Company has approximately 657 and 638 holders of each class of common equity
securities with the PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipine) and (Non-Filipino) considered
a3 two holders as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, based on the number of
accounts registered with the Stock Transfer Agent.

26. Retained Earnings

The BOD approved several declarations of cash dividends amounting to P554 million in
2010 and P369 million in 2009. There were no cash dividends declarations in 2008,
Details of the declarations are as follows:

Payable to

- Dividend Per- Stockholders of
Date of Declaration Share — Record as of Date of Payment
- September 30, 2008 0.10 Cctober 15, 2008 November 7, 2008
September 30, 2009 0.15 October 15, 2009 October 29, 2009

On September 9, 2010, the BOD approved the declaration of cash dividend amounting 1o
P369 million or P0.10 per share to stockholders of record as of September 24, 2010,
payable on or before October 8, 2010. ‘

The Company has dividend policy to declare dividends to stockholders of record, which
are paid from unrestricted retained earnings. Any future dividends it pays will be at the
discretion of the BOD after taking into account the Company’s eamnings, cash flow,
financial position, capital and operating progress, and other factors as the BOD may
consider relevant, Subject to the foregoing, the policy is to pay up to 50% of the annual
net income as dividends. This policy may be subject to future revisions.
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27. Commitments and Contingencies

a.

Leases

Operating Lease Commitments ‘ ‘

The Company leases, from third parties and NRC, certain parcels of land where
its botiling plants and warchouses are located for a period of one to twenty-five
vears and are renewable for another one to twenty-five years. None of these
leases includes contingent rentals. Rent expense pertaining to thesc leased
properties amounted to P69 million in 2010, P73 million in 2009, and P&9
million in 2008 (see Notes 14, 16, 17 and 18).

Future minimum lease payments under such noncancelable operating leases are
ag follows: : R

2010 2009 2008

Less than one year P64,441 P63,803 P74,020
‘Between one and five years 201,375 204,332 239,534
More than five years 188.18%6 197,321 227,138
P454.002 P465,156 P540,692

Finance Lease Commitments ‘

The Company has lease agreements covering cettain' pallets and power
gencration facilities in one of its plants for periods ranging from 5 to 10 years.
Future minimum lease payments and their present value are as follows:

2010 - 003
Future Present value Future Present value
minimum of minimum Minmum of minimum
lease lense lease lease
paymcnis Interest payments payients Interast payvments
Less than one :
year Pr2e,s21 F533 P25.953 P16,136 PE77 P15.279
Between one
ind five ycars 84,558 15,274 69,284 1,477 22,003 49,474
Mo than five )
Yeats 136,351 5,760 130,591 - - -

- F247,430 F21,572 F215,358 P107,633 P22,880 P84,753

The current portion of the obligation under finance lease which is included under
“Accounts payable and accrued expense” account in the statements of financial
position amounted to P27 million and P16 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, while the noncurrent portion which is included under “Other
noncurrent liabilities™ account in the statements of financial position emounted to
P69 million as of June 30, 2010 and 2009,

The lease agreement on the power generation facilities has not yet commenced
and the Company is expecting to use the said facilities next fiscal year, thus, no
assets and liabilities have been recognized as of June 30, 2010.

Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. The average effective interest rate
contracted approximates 6.0% to 6.5% per annum. There were no unguaranteed
residual values of assets leased under finance lease agreements as of June 30,

2010 and 2009,
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b. The Company is a party to a number of lawsuits and claims relating to tax, Jabor and
other issues arising out of the normal course of its business. Management and its tax
and legal counsels believe that the outcome of these lawsuits and claims will not
materially affect the financial position, financial performance or liquidity of the
Company. '
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Pepsi-Cola Producis Philiggines, Inc.
Km. 29, National Read

Tunansgan, Muntinlupa City

SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR

DIVIDEND DECLARATION

" Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted to P3,957,234
ervailuble for dividend distribution, beginning

Add: Net income actually earned/realized during the period - 738,676
Net income during the period closed to Retained Earnings

Less: Non actual/unrealized income net of tax
Equity in net earnings of associates (2,265).
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net -
Unrealized actuarial gain .

Fair value adjustment (M2M Gains)
Fair value adjustment of investment property resulting to gain -
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP -gain -
Other unrealized gains or adjustments to retained camings
ag a result of certain transactions accounted for under PFRS

Subtotal 4,603,645

Add: Non-actial losses
Depreciation on revalvation increment (after tax)
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAF -loss -
" Loss on fdir value adjustment of investment property (after tax) -

Net income actuakly earned during the period : 4,693,645
Add(less): .
Dividend Declaration during the period B {554,066)

Appropriation of Retained Earnings during the period -
Reversals of Appropriation | -
Effects of prior period adjustments
Treasury shares

Total Retained Earnings, End - Available for Dividend P4,139,570
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc.
Km. 29, National Road

Tunasan, Muntinlupa City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the accompanying
financial statements of Pepsi-Cola Products Philippines, Inc. included in this Form 17-A and have
issued our report thereon dated September 15, 2010.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. Schedules A to [ (collectively referred to as *Schedules™), as listed in the Index to
Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules, are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. These Schedules are presented for purposes of complying with the Securities
Regulation Code Rule 68.1 and are not part of the basic [inancial statements. These Schedules
have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the financial statéments data
required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
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PEPSLCOLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.
Schedula A, Marketable Securitias - (Current Marketable Equity Securities and Other Shortterm Cash investmants)

- . _-_—'——'—v—-—-—.-_..._“____m
Natme of [sguing antty and Number of ghares JAmount shown n [Valucd based

Incoma
association of gach igsus  for principal amount Jihe batance shaet on market received and
(1} of bonds ang notes {(2) quotation at acoruad

balance shest
data (3}

NOT APPLICABLE



PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPFINES, INC.
Schedule B, Amounts Receivable from Directors, Offfcers, Employees, Related Partias and Principai Stockhelders (Other than Refated Parlies).

Name and Designation of |Balance at beginning of JAddfions Amounts Amounts weitten ] Gurrent ol Curent” [Balanes at and of
dehter {1] period collected (2 oiff {3) period

PepsiCo nfl P26,717,280 PSTE,571,145 (PG00, 480, £52) P - P5,198 277 P- Po 198,277
Nadeco Reaity Comp. 87,433,008 76,654,022 {7.200,10% - 156,887 017 - 156,887,017
tadeca Holdings Corp. 2,303,874 FrE,174 {82.201) - 2,99% 847 - 2,599,847
Emplayees 2,740,846 56,833,350 {95,404 B 1) - 4,170,134 - 4,170,194
Tolals P119,1%5 038 F713,236, 704 [P&63,176,467) P - P164,255,335 P- P169,255,318




PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILI PPINES, iNC,

Schedule €, Non-Current Marketable Equity Securlfies, Other Long-Term Investments in Stock, and Other |nvestme nts

[MNams oftssuing entity and gescrption of invesiment Mimber of shares 2t or Amount in Pesos Equity in edmings Other (4) | Cistibiction . Cither [T Humber of  Amounl in Pesos {71 i Diyidends
(13 principat amaunt of ) (losses of invesieas of sarnings shares (23 ar receired
bonds and notes {3} for the pericg by investess principal from
. Madeco Realty Comporafion 22,000,000 527,347,011 P2127 345 P- P- p- P - PE24,475 258 P-
Madeco Holdings Corparation 400 3VE,373 137,725 - - - - 513,098 -
Totals 22,000,400 P57, 723,285 P2 265070 P. F- P- P. P52% 988,354 P -




PEPEI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC,
Schedule D. Indebtedness of Uncansolidated Subsidiaries and Affillates

Name of Afiliates (1) " Balancé &t [Balance at end o
beginning of period (2)
penio
e - ———r— |

NOT APPLICABLE



PEPSE-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, iNC,
Schedule E. intangible Assets - Other Assets

Deseription (1) Beginning balance™ [RAddiions at cost Charged fo cost Charped to Qther changes Ending balance
2 ard expanses | other accounts additions
{deductions) i

Cther Assets

Idfe fixed assefs - net PE50,062 - - - [P4,500) P545 562
Input fax on capital goods 110,984,130 - - - {36.028,122) 74,958,008
Miscellaneows investments arnd dep 31,805,808 - - - 1,081,958 32,6687 765
Miscellaneous receivablas - lang term 331,829 - - - (193,722) 141,197
Misceillaneaus assets 469,305 - - - - 465 305
Totzls P143 941,134 P. P- P- {F34,141,386} P108, 799,748




PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.
Sehedule F. Long Term Debt

itly of Issua and type
of obligation

Amaunt authorfzed by
indenture

AmaLnt shown under caption

"Current poriien of long-term debt”
in related balahce sheet

T ——

Amourt shown under caphon
"Long-Term.Dabt" in related
balanca sheet

NOT APPLICABLE




PEPSI-COLA FRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

Schedule G, Indebtednass to Afflllates and Relatad Partles (Long-Term Loans from Related Comparies)

NaiTie of affiiate {1} | Balance at baginning of | Balance at ang of penod
pariad {2}

NOT APPLICABLE



PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, [NC.
Schedule H. Guarantees of Secyrities of Other Issuers(1)

Mame of issuing entity of securites I 1Hle of issue of each ciass [Total amount
quaranteed by the company for of securitfes guaranteed . guaranteed and
which fhis staternent is filed ’ outstanding {2)

Amaunt owned by
person far which

Astatement is fileg

Mature of guzrantes T3t

HOT APPLICAELE



PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIFPINES, INC.
Schedule |. Capital Stock 1]

Title of Isste {2 Mumber of Shares Murnbear of shares issued ang Mumber of shares MNumber of shares held Direciors, officers Others
altharized outstanding at shown under fesenved for oplions, by affiliates (3) and employees
" refated bafance steet caption warrants, conversien
and other rights
L
Commen Shases 5,000,000,600 3,693,772.270 - 3,596,1849,171 20,430,008 77,153,100
Totals 5,000,000,000 3693.772,279 - 3,596,188, 171 20,430,008 77,153,160




PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC.

Km. 29 Natlonal Road, Tunasan, Muntintupa Gity 1773 Philipplrres
Tel. No.: (832) 850-7901 Fex No.: (632) 850-78268
Webaite: www, pepsiphilipptnes.com

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of PEPSI-COLA PRODUCTS PHILIPPINES, INC., is responsible for
all information and representations contained in the accompanying financial statements,
which comprise the statements of financial position as at June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2010. The financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
and reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates and informed judgment of
matagement with an appropriate consideration to materiality.

In this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides
for the necessary intemal controls to ensure that transactions are propetly authorized and
recorded, assets are safeguarded against unauthorized use or disposition and Liabilities are
recognized. The management likewise discloses to the Company’s audit committee and to
its external auditor: (i) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of intemal
controls that could adversely affect its ability to record, process, and report financial data;
(i) material weaknesses in the internal controls; and (jii) any fraud that involves
management or other employees who exercise significant roles in internal contro)s.

The Board of Directors reviews the financial statements before such statements are
approved and submitted to the Stockholders of the Company.

* Manabat Sanagustin & Co., CPAs, the independent auditors appointed by the Stockholders,
has audited the financial statements of the. Company in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing and has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
completion of such audit, in its report to the Board of Directors and Stockholders.
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MICKY YONG | PARTHA CHAKRABARTI
Chairman, President and CEQ EVP and Chief Operating Officer
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SVP and Chief Financial Officer g
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
‘-Muntlinlupa Cllgty ))s.s.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me in the City of _Muntinlypa City

this ___thdayof _SEP 15 2010 by:
Competent
Name Evidence of Identity Date/Place Issued
Micky Yong Passport No.506034791 April 26, 2001/Singapore
Fartha Chakrabarti Passport No. Z1751 780 Feb. 26, 2008/Manila
Akash Shah | _ Péssport No. BAG47570 Oct. 22, 2009/Bangkok

who have satisfactorily proven their identity to me through the above identification, that they
are the same person who personally signed the foregoing instrument before me and
acknowledged that they executed the same.

ATTYmaAUDJQ (G, SANDOVAL

Doc. No. 403 Notary Pupic
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